%)
’ Yucaipa Valley Water District
W

Notice and Agenda of a Board Workshop
Tuesday, October 11, 2016 at 4:00 p.m.

MEETING LOCATION: District Administration Building

12770 Second Street, Yucaipa

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD: Director Ken Munoz, Division 1

Director Bruce Granlund, Division 2
Director Jay Bogh, Division 3
Director Lonni Granlund, Division 4
Director Tom Shalhoub, Division 5

Call to Order

Public Comments At this time, members of the public may address the Board of Directors on matters within its
jurisdiction; however, no action or significant discussion may take place on any item not on the meeting agenda.

Staff Report
Presentations

A.

C.

D.

Overview of the Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year Ending on June
30, 2016 [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 - Page 9 of 221]

Overview of the California Drought and Yucaipa Valley Water District’'s Action Plan
Related to the State Water Resources Control Board Water Conservation
Restrictions [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-145 - Page 64 of 221]

Report on Water Quality and the State Water Project Crafton Hills Reservoir
[Workshop Memorandum No. 16-146 - Page 75 of 221]

Overview of the Planned Purchase of Additional Water Rights by the San Gorgonio
Pass Water Agency [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-147 - Page 80 of 221]

Operational Updates

A.

Status Report on the Operation of the Yucaipa Valley Water District's Recycled
Water Fill Station at Crystal Creek [\Workshop Memorandum No. 16-148 - Page 99
of 221]

Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should contact the District office
at (909) 797-5117, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or

accommodation.

Materials that are provided to the Board of Directors after the workshop packet is compiled and distributed will be made available
for public review during normal business hours at the District office located at 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa. Meeting materials
are also available on the District’s website at www.yvwd.dst.ca.us

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 1 of 221


http://www.yvwd.dst.ca.us/

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop Page 2

B. Overview of the Draft Sanitary Sewer Management Plan [\Workshop Memorandum
No. 16-149 - Page 101 of 221]

C. Overview of Proposed Pretreatment Standards for Dental Facilities [\Workshop
Memorandum No. 16-150 - Page 144 of 221]

VI. Capital Improvement Projects

A Status Report on the Construction of a 6.0 Million Gallon Drinking Water Reservoir
R-12.4 - Calimesa [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-151 - Page 147 of 221

B. Overview of Change Orders Associated with the Wochholz Regional Water

Recycling Facility Digester Cleaning and Cover Replacement Project [\Workshop
Memorandum No. 16-152 - Page 154 of 221]

VIl.  Administrative Issues

A Overview of a Grant Opportunity with the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority
and OmniEarth/Dropcountr [\Workshop Memorandum No. 16-153 - Page 175 of
221]

B. Review of the Unaudited Financial Report for the Period Ending on September 30,
2016 [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-154 - Page 184 of 221]

VIIl. Director Comments
IX.  Adjournment

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 2 of 221



Staff Report

2%
' Yucaipa Valley Water District
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 3 of 221



ND WATER DEEPLY

Water Recycling Spikes Demand

for State Loans
A California loan program for clean water projects that usually
runs a surplus can’t keep up with demand after the drought

boosted interest in water recycling and reuse projects.
Written byMatt Weiser Published onc Oct. 3, 2016 Read time Approx. 5 minutes

A low-interest
loan program

that supports i “‘l! r% H ‘ '

California water
projects has seen
three times more
requests for
money than it
has funds
available, partly
because of
surging interest
in water
recycling.

The Clean Water
State Revolving
Fund exists to
help local
agencies pay for
wastewater
treatment plant
upg rades, n engineer samples recycled water at Delta Diablo Sanitation District in Oakley, Calif The district has applied for a $4.4
stormwater Tillion loan from the Clean Water State Revolving Fund to build storage tanks for recycled water

capture and

wildlife habitat projects that improve water quality. Eighty percent of the money in
the fund comes from federal appropriations via the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency, and the remainder from state appropriations.

&

A separate Drinking Water State Revolving Fund provides grants and loans for
drinking water treatment and supply projects.

Until about 2012, there was relatively little demand on the clean water fund, and it

usually ran a surplus. Then California’s long drought began, and demand for the
money by water agencies began to ramp up.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 4 of 221



“Over the last eight to 10 years or so, we had a lot of extra cash in the program,”
said Christopher Stevens, a supervising engineer at the State Water Resources
Control Board, which manages the fund. “Now, we’re writing more loans and more
money is going out the door.”

In the 2015 to 2016 fiscal year, the water board completed $1.05 billion in loan
agreements to local water and wastewater agencies using the fund. But there are
additional applications for funding that total $3 billion.

That doesn’t mean projects won’t get funded, and Stevens was careful to explain
the fund is not in a deficit situation.

Rather, the
imbalance
between
available
funds and
applications
for money
simply
means some
projects
must wait
longer

for funding.

The fund
works by
offering
loans at
about half

i An engineer fills a container with recycled water at the Advanced Water Purification Facility, San Diego. (Gregory Bull, AP)
the prime g ) go. (Gregory

interest rate, or about 2 percent. That makes the program a very good deal for
borrowers. As those loans are paid back over time, the repayments allow the fund
to gradually grow and fund even more projects, hence the “revolving fund” name.
Each year, it gets additional federal and state appropriations that also build the
loan fund.

Stevens said that prior to 2012 the clean water fund rarely spent all of its available
money. This was partly because the application process was cumbersome,
discouraging many agencies from applying. So the water board streamlined its
application process.

At the same time, it also increased the loan payback time from 20 years to 30
years, which made borrowing from the fund significantly cheaper. California was
one of the first states to do so with its revolving fund, and many other states have
since adopted the same measure.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 5 of 221



“There is definitely more demand on the program, and that was something we did
intentionally,” Stevens said. “It's great to have cash in the bank, but that really
wasn’t doing as much for water quality as could be done. It's fair to say there are
billions of dollars that we could use to finance additional projects.”

A lot of Californians don’t realize it, but they pay a monthly utility bill for sewage
treatment in addition to their water bill. These ratepayer revenues are the largest
source of money for new wastewater projects, said Bobbi Larsen, executive director
of the California Association of Sanitation Agencies, a trade association that
represents hundreds of wastewater treatment agencies.

But the Clean Water State Revolving Fund is the “single most significant” source of
project funding outside of those ratepayer funds, she said.

“Since the early 1990s, the state revolving fund was very much maligned in
California. It was viewed as highly bureaucratic, and getting funding took a long
time,” Larsen said. “But | think the water board took that very much to heart, and
they really tried to streamline things and take out unnecessary barriers. They
decided to take a bit more of a customer-service approach in terms of helping

people apply.”

In 2014, as the state was in the thick of the drought, the water board allocated
$800 million from the fund specifically for projects that recycle treated sewage for
potable use or landscape irrigation. And it offered funding for these projects at an
interest rate of just 1 percent — half its usual loan rate.

This proved so popular that the program was extended in February, with another
$160 million added for water recycling projects.

Jennifer Clary, water programs manager at the environmental group Clean Water
Action, supports the fund’s new streamlined direction and said it’s good to see more
projects getting funded.

But she said the water recycling projects it supports are not exactly “forward
thinking.” Many are so-called “purple pipe” projects that deliver treated wastewater
in dedicated pipelines for landscape irrigation. This is partly because the water
board is still working to finalize regulations for direct potable reuse projects.

“Purple pipe projects used to water lawns are probably not the kind of cutting-edge
projects that | really think of as drought-proofing,” Clary said.

Another concern is that stormwater reuse and habitat projects that improve water
quality are rarely funded. That’s because such projects are more difficult to connect
with tangible benefits for ratepayers, Clary said. This makes it difficult to use sewer
rate revenues as local matching funds for a state loan, or to pay back a state loan.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 6 of 221



The water board is not out of options to fund the $3 billion in additional demand for
clean water loans. Earlier this year, the board voted to sell bonds on the open
market to raise an additional $1.2 billion.

About $800 million of that bonding authority remains available to raise additional
money for the fund in 2017 and 2018.

Beyond that, Stevens said the water board could authorize additional bonding
authority, but that decision isn’'t imminent yet.

The city of San Luis Obispo is one agency getting in line for a loan. The city needs
to modernize and expand its sewage treatment plant to meet new treatment
standards imposed by federal law, and to keep up with population growth.

The new project will expand and improve recycling capacity, said David Hix, San
Luis Obispo’s wastewater division manager. The city hopes to secure a loan for as
much as $90 million at 1 percent interest for the project.

Hix said the city is also interested in expanding its water recycling into a direct
potable reuse system, once the state water board finalizes those regulations. This
would allow highly treated wastewater to be plumbed directly into a water
treatment plant — or even directly into the drinking water supply system.

“We really want to position this project for maximizing recycled water, whether it’s
for irrigation or for potable reuse,” Hix said. “l definitely support the state selling
more bonds or finding alternatives to keeping the revolving fund going, because |
think they’re the best deal in town.”

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 7 of 221



Presentations

%)
’ Yucaipa Valley Water District

L T\ 4

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 8 of 221



' M )

C

Yucaipa Valley Water District
'\ 4

Date:

Subject:

October 11, 2016

Workshop Memorandum 16-144

Overview of the Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year

End

ing on June 30, 2016

The certified public accounting firm of Vavrinek, Trine, Day and Company has completed the
financial audit for the fiscal year ending on June 30, 2016.

A representative from Vavrinek, Trine, Day and Company will attend the board workshop to
provide an overview of the audited financial documents and answer questions about the report.
The attached draft documents will be presented in final form at the board meeting on October 18,

2016.
Total Assets by District Enterprise
$160,000,000
$140,000.000 == \Nater Assets
= Sewer Assets

$120,000,000 {—— «===Recyled Water Assets /

$100,000,000 / /

$80,000,000 ,/7\J

$60,000,000 —7 /

$40,000,000 /

$20,000,000 / —— .

$O T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T 1

O d N M T LD O 0O O d NM T LW OO A NMS I ©
D OO OO OO OO OO OO0 0 0 0O o o «d A A o
D OO OO OO OO O) O OO OO O OO O O O OO O OO O OoOOoOOoOOoO o
ddddd ddddddauaagaaaadaaayaQo
4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 94 4 4 d A A d d
LLLLLLELRLLILL2L2LL2L2L2L2Q2L2L0Q2Q2LQ0QQLQQPLQL
L D = = = = U = = T = = I = I = I = T = T = I = = T = I = I = I = I = T = T = I = T = I
O O O OO OO 0O 0O 000000000 OOOoOOo oo oo oo

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 9 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 2 of 55

o%
>

“) %,

’ Yucaipa Valley Water District P\,o

W? %,

12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399

Annual Financial Statements

for the

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

Board of Directors
Kenneth P. Munoz Bruce Granlund Jay Bogh Lomni Granlund Thomas Shalhoub
Division 1 Divisions 2 Division 3 Division 4 Division 5

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 10 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 3 of 55
Financial Audit Preparation Team: e o
%,
Administrative Engineering 4 0/0
S

Vicky Elisalda, Controller
Peggy Little, Administrative Supervisor
Erin Anton, Admimistrative Clerk IV
Sara Onate, Admimstrative Clerk IV

Tysa Baeumel, Administrative Clerk III

" 2t )
' Yucaipa Valley Water District

Linda Kilday, Engineering Technician [V /ja

Chelsie Fogus, Engineering Technician I

Inventory Control

Joan Cadiz, Purchasing Agent

W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 11 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 4 of 55

Table of Contents o
Transmittal Letter (O}»
Introduction /@0
Overview of the District i J\/j
Development Activity within the District v 2
Water Resource Demands vi
Major Initiatives and Controls vii
Independent Auditors' Report 1
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 4

Financial Statements

Proprietary Funds
Statement of Net Position 13
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 14
Statement of Cash Flows 15
Agency Fund
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities 17
Notes to the Financial Statements 18
Required Supplementary Information 41
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 42
Schedule of Contributions 43
: “r‘u?csipﬂ Valley Water District
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 12 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 5 of 55

Financial Statemenis
Audited Financial Sl%%ts - Fizcal Year 2016
“»
INTRODUCTION O

It is my pleasure to provide the following financial report for Yucaipa Valley Water District (“ ]Ip. )
for the fiscal vear ended on June 30, 2016. The financial report was prepared by District staff fol O‘vyﬂg
guidelines set forth by the Govermmental Accounting Standards Board.

d‘
The District is ultimately responsible for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and the {/6«
fairness of presentation, including all disclosures in this financial report. We believe that the daia
presented is accurate in all material respects. This report is designed in a manner that we believe
necessary to enhance your understanding of the District’s financial position and activities.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the financial statements in the form of the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section. This letter of transmittal is designed to
complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.

This report is organized into the following sections: (1) Transmittal Letter and District Overview; (2)
Management Discussion & Amnalysis; (3) Audited Financial Statemenis; (4) Required Supplementary
Information. The first section provides the reader with a general overview of the District. The
Management Discussion & Analysis section offers a summary of significant financial results. The
Audited Financial Statements section includes the Independent Auditors’ Report. The Required
Supplementary section provides information and schedules to supplement the basic financial statements.

OVERVIEW OF THE DISTRICT

The Yucaipa Valley Water District is made up of a proactive and diverse group of elected officials and
employees dedicated to providing reliable water and sewer service in an efficient, cost effective manner
that provides a high level of customer satisfaction. On May 1, 2002, the Board of Directors adopted the
following mission statement to clearly reflect the vision and principles that guide the dedicated elected
officials and employees of the District.

Yucaipa Valley Water District is committed to professionally managing the precious water, sewer
and recycled water resources of the Yucaipa Valley in a reliable, efficient and cost effective
marmer in order to provide the finest service to our customers, both present and future.

We are entrusted to serve the public for the benefit of the community.

We believe in responsive, inmovative and aggressive service, and take pride in geiting the job
done right the first time.

We encourage a work environment thai fosters professionalism, creativity, teamwork and
personal accountability.

We treal our customers and one another with fairness, dignity, respect and compassion and
exhibit the utmost integrity in all we do.

We believe in enhancing the environment by following a general philosophy of eliminating waste
and maximizing recycling and reuse of our natural resources.

2%
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Pagei

W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 13 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 6 of 55

Financial Statemenis
Audited Financial Sl%%ts - Fizcal Year 2016

We are committed to vsing the following operating principles as a guide to acco‘ﬁ&l%sl‘ﬁng our

mission: O{O

¢ We are proactive in our approach to issues. }N 7

e We are committed to integrity and consistently high ethical standards in all our busin@y
dealings. s

e We use the strategic planning process to focus our efforts and minimize our crisis \/5

management mode.

We make informed, rational and objective decisions.

We aggressively pursue technological solutions to improve operations.

We are inclusive in our decision making and delegate responsibility whenever possible.

We design our services around customer wanis and needs to the degree possible within our

financial and regulatory constraints.

e We cultivate widespread comumitment to common goals.

We believe our success depends on every employee knowing and sharing these values and
principles.

This financial report iz a reflection of the District’s commitment to professionally manage the precious
water, sewer and recycled water resources of the Yucaipa Valley in a reliable, efficient and cost effective
manner in order to provide the finest service to our customers, both present and fture.

To meet the mission of the District, the Board and staff members continue to proactively focus on water
quality issues, water supply issues, infrastructure deficiencies, maintenance of existing systems and
compliance with increasingly stringent regulatory requirements.

Historical Background

The District was formed as part of reorgamzation, pursuant to the Reorgamization Act of 1963, being
Divigion I of Title 6 of the Government Code of the State of California. This reorganization consisted of
the formation of the District, dissolution of the Calimesa Water District and formation of Tmprovement
District No. 1 of the District as successor-in-interest, and dissolution of Improvement District “A” of the
San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District and the formation of Improvement District “A”> of the
District as successor-in-interest. On September 14, 1971, the Secretary of State of the State of California
certified and declared formation of the Yucaipa Valley County Water District. The District operates
under the County Water District Law, being Division 12 of the State of California Water Code (the
“Act™). Although the immediate fanction of the District was to provide water service, the District has
assumed responsibility for providing recycled water and sewer service in Yucaipa Valley.

The District is located about 70 miles east of Los Angeles and 20 miles southeast of San Bernardino in
the foothills of the San Bermnardino Mountains and provides water, sewer and recycled water services.

2%
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Pageii

W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 14 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 7 of 55

Financial Statemenis
Audited Financial % nts - Fiscal Year 2016

As of June 30, 2016, the District provided service to 12,678 water connections (17,422&&1%), 13,769
gewer connections (20,867 units) and 84 recycled water connections. O{O
I

- - Recycled
Water Utility Sewer Utility Water Uﬁll( 2
Customer Type Number of Number Number of Number Number of ?_)\
Connections of Units Connections of Units Connections {/

Single Family 11,524 11,524 12,808 12,808 0 G
Multiple Units 500 5,253 656 7.745 0
Commercial 266 266 255 255 0
Institutional 104 104 47 56 0
Industrial 13 13 3 3 0
Irrigation 118 118 0 0 78
Fire Detectors 130 130 0 0 0
Construction 14 14 0 0 6

Total 12,678 17,422 13,769 20,867 84

Land and Land Use

The altitude of the District rises from about 2,000 feet above sea level at the western end of the valley to
about 5,000 feet at the eastern end, with average elevation of roughly 2,650 feet. The topography of the
area i characterized by rolling hills separated by deeply entrenched stream beds, namely, the Yucaipa
and Wilson Creeks. The District includes the incorporated cities of Yucaipa and Calimesa which are in
San Bernardino and Riverside Counties respectively.

The District expects that the undeveloped land within its boundaries will contimie to be developed
consisient with the general plans as provided by the City of Yucaipa and the City of Calimesa. The
projected population of the District in the year 2030 will be approximately 94,800, which reflects build-
out of the City of Calimesa and the Oak Valley development. Although approximately 49.8% of the land
within the boundaries of the District is currently undeveloped, less than 1% of District water sales are to
agricultural water users.

Governance and Management

The District is governed by a 5-member board of directors (the “Board”), the members of which are
elected from five separaie divisions of the District for staggered 4-year terms. The cumrent Board
members, the expiration dates of their terms and their occupations are set forth below.

Member of the Division Initial Date Expiration Occupation
Board of Directors of Service of Term
Bruce Granlund, Director Two 12/23/1998 2018 Retired Senior District Attorney Investigator
Lonni Granlund, President Four 12/05/2008 2016 Property Manager/Real Estate Broker
Tay Bogh, Vice President Three 09/07/2005 2018 Building Firm Manager
Thomas Shalhoub, Director Five 12/03/2014 2018 Retired Entrepreneur
Kenneth P. Munoz, Director One 12/07/2012 2016 Equipment Company Owner
2%
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page iii
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 15 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144

Page 8 of 55

Financial Statements
Audited Financial s@m - Fiscal Year 2016

A%y

@ Yucaipa Valley
Qa® Water District
12770 2wl Street, Yoeaipa, Ca 92399
Division Boundaries

June 2011

L LEJT

T .

=

) A

Yucaipa Valley Water District

Presidents of the Board

October 1971 to November 1973
December 1973 to November 1975
December 1975 to October 1977

Harold Lockwood
Hank Wochholz
Geno Gasponi

November 1977 to November 1979 Eve Kraft
December 1979 to December 1983 Pete Squires
January 1984 to December 1987 Fred Childs
January 1988 to November 1989 George Sardeson
November 1989 to December 1991 Hank Wochholz

January 1992 to November 1993
December 1993 to December 1995
December 1995 to December 1998
January 1999 to November 2002
December 2002 to December 2006

David Lesser
Conrad Nelson
Steve Copelan
Conrad Nelson

Bruce Granlund

December 2006 to December 2008 Tom Shalhoub
December 2008 to December 2012 Jay Bogh
January 2013 to December 2014 Bruce Granlund

The following individuals have served as President of the Board since the District was created in 1971.

December 2014 to Present Lonni Granlund
o%»
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page v
L”

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 16 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144

Page 9 of 55

Day-to-day management of the District is delegated to the General Manager who works
executive team who ultimately oversee all of the District’s services and functions.

Kenneth Munoz

Board Member
Division 1

Bruce Granlund
Board Member
Division 2

Audited Financial S

Jay Bogh

Vice President
Division 3

Lonni Granlund

President
Division 4

Financial Statements
1ts - Fiscal Year 2016

e'l}’ée{y with an
(O

Thomas
Shalhoub
Board Member

Division 5

D

t

7" Jack Nelson
‘ Assistant General H

(S Manager J)

Joseph Zoba
General Manager

w

7

A

' ( 4 1 ™ "\ I
/ =\ ) = 7
Vicky Elisalda Jennifer Ares ‘ ' John Hull
‘ Controller Water Resource Manager | . Public Works Manager
i / j \ }r
Accounting Resource Efficiency Maintenance of Water,
Customer Service Programs Sewer, and Recycled
Payroll Best Management Program Systems
Asset Management Implementation Environmental Control
Financial Statements Environmental Reports and Services
Compliance Facility Maintenance
Public Outreach Industrial Pretreatment
Education
/ B y -/ Kevin King ‘\'-' - Bob Wall R [ John Wrobel
rent Anton ) . )
Engineering Manager ‘ Operations Manager Operations Manager J Regulatory & Environmental
\ / | Sewer \ Water bW Control Manager
S - AN .// AN -
Construction Management Sewer Treatment \Water Production Sewer Collection System
Project Planning Recycled Water Production \Water Treatment Pretreatment Program
Development Planning Regulatory Compliance Water Quality Brineline Operation and
GIS/Modeling Recycled Water Delivery Maintenance
Plan Check

Inspection Services

Regulatory Compliance

Sewer Lift Station Operation
and Maintenance

DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITY WITHIN THE DISTRICT

Facility Capacity Charges - Fiscal Year 2016

During this fiscal year, the District added 154 water connections, 155 sewer connections, and 6 recycled

water connections.

When compared to the development activity in the prior year, the District received

16.76% fewer water connections, 17.11% fewer sewer connections and 50.00% more recycled water

connections.

2%

@ Yucaipa Valley Water Distiict
L I 4

Page v

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 17 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 10 of 55

Financial Statemenis
Audited Financial % nts - Fiscal Year 2016

. New Recycled
. , New Water New Sewer L
Fiscal Year s . Water
Connections Connections .
Connections

2007 222 189 23 “0
2008 59 67 10 J%/
2009 41 35 1 o
2010 18 17 2
2011 86 15 1
2012 22 32 3
2013 57 54 9
2014 59 18 0
2015 185 187 4
2016 154 155 (i)
Historical Water, Sewer and Recycled Water New Connections
o600
“ 500
rat
=
w1
o
e
S
o 400
| o
| oy
=]
]
=z
U
=
5 300 -+
I
0
£
=
=
200
100
0
= &N M o= N WM~ 000 oMo N W00 00 NN Mmoo D
g & O & O Oy O O O © O O DO O C O 0O 9O 0 =™ ™= o ™=~ = = -~
oy 3 O O O Oy O O O O O O O C O O OO0 OO0 0 o oo oQoco
= o e e o e e = = NN NN NN N RN N NN NN NN NN
S - - S-S S S T T - - o - -~ T SR S S S S .
[N, [N [N [N [N [N [N [N [N [N [N, [N, [N [N [N [N [N [N [N [N [N, [N, [N, [N [N [N
B Water Division  OSewer Division  ERecycled Water Division
%y " _
’Q Yuc.c(upc Valley Water District Page vi
Q"

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 18 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 11 of 55

Financial Statemenis
Audited Financial Sl%%ts - Fizcal Year 2016
“»
MAJOR INITIATIVES AND CONTROLS OO{O}N
Sustainability Initiative /0
{7

Califormia’s water supply continues to be a concern due to projected population increases and limjted‘-’%/
capabilities to convey water throughout the state. On August 20, 2008 the Board of Directors adopteda ¢
Strategic Plan for a Sustainable Future - The Integration and Preservation of Resources. The purpose of this
document was to document the proactive steps taken by the Yucaipa Valley Water District to improve the

social, economic and environmental sustainability of our community. These actions have included the
purchase of wvaluable watershed properties, protection of local water supplies and management of
environmental corridors. While the decisions to embark on these actions have been generally unrelated, a

look back in time indicates that the District has been progressing towards a more independent, flexible

and sustainable future.

The proactive steps taken by the District to protect and
"The Fction behaves WZHI .LFH treats Ihe na.turaf congerve oOur resources have been based on the
resources as assets which it must turn over to concepts that: (1) resources are not limitless and
the next genmeration increased, and no!  iherefore need to be conserved, nurtured and renewed;

impairved in vaiue " and (2) resources that are used to generate short-term
gains result in an inefficient and inequitable
- Theodore Roosevelt consumption of resources that are not beneficial for a

long-term strategy. Both of these concepts help to
guide the District to make decisions that are conservative, careful and conscious of the role we currently
play in a long-term sirategy to protect the community.

The purpose of pursuing a sustainability plan is twofold. First and foremost, the sustainability plan has
been designed to establish the policies and guidelines necessary to protect and preserve the natural
resources entrusied to the District for our customers. It is our business to maximize the use of our limited
natural resources for the long-term economic growth and expansion of the local economy. Tn the arid
southwest, the basic fiel to create and maintain a local economy is water. Secondly, the sustainahility
policy has been designed to provide a means to measure performance of the organization. While
performance monitoring or benchmarking
is  not mnormally associated with "Susiainable development is . .. development that meels the
sustainability, this document has been needs of the present without compromising the ability of
created with the intention that the goals firther generations to meet their own needs."

and reporting requirements are designed
around performance manageiment acToss a World Commission on Environment and Development,

wide range of disciplines. Our Commeon Fuiure, 1987

With the use of this document the District is better equipped to:

o Identify the key challenges over the next five decades and assess the goals to overcome these
challenges;

e Deal with the challenges of the future in a trangparent manner involving stakeholders;

e Ideniify and manage risk in a reasonable and prudent manner with information, data and resources
necessary to minimize the potential costs associated with certain scenarios; and

¢ Embark on a program to ensure that the generations that follow are provided with the necessary tools
and resources to grow the community as the prior generation has done for us.

2%
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page vii

W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 19 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 12 of 55

Financial Statemenis
Audited Financial Sl%%ts - Fizcal Year 2016

£
The implementation of this initiative will come about largely with the return of new developmg‘ However,
the District has enacted additional measures for existing customers which largely involves the hase of
imported water to offset groondwater production by 15% beginning in January 2010. (0}»

Internal Control Structure /0/0
District management is responsible for the establishment and maintenance of the internal conirol structure d>
that ensures the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse. The internal control G
structure also ensures adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The District’s internal control
structure is designed to provide reasonable assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived, and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Budgetary Control

The District’s Board of Directors annually adopts an operating and capital budget prior to the new fiscal
vear. The budget authorizes and provides the basis for reporting and control of financial operations and
accountability for the District’s enterprise operations and capital projects. The budget and reporting steps
taken by the Disirict are consistent with generally accepied accounting principles with monthly reporting
of public documents for complete transparency and disclosure.

Investment Policy

The Board of Directors adopts an investment policy annually that conforms to state law, District
ordinance and resolutions, and prudent money management. The District is extremely conservative in our
approach to investing to maximize safety and protection of public funds.

Aundit and Financial Reporting

State law and bond covenants require the District to obtain an anmual audit of its financial statements by
an independent certified public accountant. The accounting firm of Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP has
conducted the audit of the District’s financial statemenis. Their unmodified Independent Auditors' Report
is attached.

2%
’ Yucaipa Valley Water District Page viii

W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 20 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 13 of 55

Financial Statemenis
Audited Financ%;;ments - Fiscal Year 2016

&>
}Oo
L

0,
%
%
Independent Auditors' Report
2%
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 1
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 21 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 14 of 55

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
Yucaipa Valley Water District
Yucaipa, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Water, Sewer, and Recyeled Water Enterprise
TFunds of the Yucaipa Valley Water District (District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain recasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audil procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accountling estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 22 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 15 of 55

Opinions O

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 1&fpects, the respective
financial position of the Water, Sewer, and Recycled Water Enterprise Funds of the District, asdf June 30, 2016,
and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 7o) }L

Other Matters Z 0’/
G5

Required Supplementary Information ;’(j“
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 5 through 11, the Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability on page 41 and the Schedule of Contributions on page 42 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The transmittal letter listed in the table of contents is presented
for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The transmittal
letter has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also 1ssued our report dated , 2016, on
our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report 1s an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 1n
considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Rancho Cucamonga, California

,2016

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 23 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 16 of 55

Financial Statemenis
Audited Financ%;;ments - Fiscal Year 2016

&>
}Oo
L

‘o,
%
%
Management’s Discussion & Analysis
)
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 4
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 24 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 17 of 55

Manag@nt’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year 2016

This section of the Yucaipa Valley Water District's comprehensive annual financial report ﬁ% ts a discussion
and analysis of the District's financial performance during the fiscal years ending JuneC}O, 2015 and
June 30, 2016. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report an% District's
basic financial statements following this section.

Yucaipa Valley Water District’s financial statements consist of three enterprise funds: (W) water fund, (S) 5@@
fund and (R) recycled water fund. d\/
“

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Based on the financial information for the fiscal year ending on June 30, 2016, the following financial highlights
are noted for the Yucaipa Valley Water District.

¥ The District’s net position increased 1.34%t0 $196,916,093.

% The District’s total revenues decreased 3.59% to $23,517,160.
¥ The District’s total expenses decreased 1.22% to 26,343,631,
P

The capital contributions to the District totaled $3,437,544 for the fiscal year.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s basic
financial statements. The District’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: Financial
Statements, Notes to the Financial Statements and Required Supplementary Information.

The District’s Basic Financial Statements are comprised of the Statement of Net Position, Statement of
Revemues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and Statement of Cash Flows.

The Sicatement of Net Position presents information on all District assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources with the difference reported as Net Position. Over time, increases or decreases
in Net Position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or
deteriorating.

The Statement of Revenuezs, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information showing how Net
Position changed during the fiscal vear.

The Statement of Cash Flows presents information about the cash receipts and cash payments of the District
during the fiscal year. When used with related disclosures and information in the other financial statements, the
information provided in these statements should help financial report users assess the District’s ability to generate
future net cash flows, its ability to meet its obligations as they come due and its need for external financing. It
also provides insight into the reasons for differences between operating income and associated cash receipts and
payments; and the effects on the District's financial position of its cash and its non-cash investing, capital and
related financing transactions during the year.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statementys provides additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the District's financial statements. The notes are included immediately following the
financial statements within this report.

P 2l
’ Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 5
LWa”

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 25 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144

Page 18 of 55

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Inflows of Regsources and Net Pogition as of June 30, 2016.

P 2l
’ Yucaipa Valley Water District

W

Aszzets

Current assets - W
Current assets - 3
Current asgets - R

Net capital agsets - W

Net capital assets - 8
Net capital assets - R
Other assets - W
Other assets - 8
Other assets - R
Total Assets

Deferred Qutflows of Resources

Deferred amounts related to pensions - W

Deferred amounts related to pensions - §

Deferred amounts related to pensions - R
Total Deferred Outflows

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows

Liabilities
Current liabilities - W

Current liabilities - S
Current liabilities - R

Long, term liabilities - W
Long term liabilities - S
Long term liabilities - R

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred amounts related to pensions - W
Deferred amounts related to pensions - §
Deferred amounts related to pensions - R
Total Deferred Inflows

Net Position
Net Investment in capital assets,
Net of related debt - W
Net of related debt - S
Net of related debt - R

Restricted - W
Restricted - S
Restricted - R
Unrestrcted - W
Unrestricted - S
Unrestricted - R

Total Net Position
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net
Position

Manag@nt’s Discussion and Analysis

2

s

The following table summarizes the changes in the Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabi

Fiscal Year 2016

De ferred
p
Statement of Net Position /0
{7,
2016 2015 Change % Change ‘j%/
)
$ 11,344,506 $ 11,318,521 $ 225,985 2.00%
9,312,148 8,756,444 555,704 6.35%
2,009,043 3,136,336 (1,147 .493) -36.35%
104,109,628 102,581,965 1,527,663 1.4%%0
126,851,770 128,206,759 {1,354,989) -1.06%
25,697,088 25,514,168 182,920 0.72%
2,941,847 5,967,127 (3,025,280) -50.70%
893,163 873,908 19255 2.20%
394,035 364,059 29,976 8.23%
283,753,228 286,739,487 {2,986,259) -1.04%
350,974 370,912 180,062 48.55%
411,885 277279 134,606 48.55%
7915 5,327 2,588 48.58%
970,774 653,518 317,256 48.55%
284,724,002 287,393,005 (2,669,003) -0.93%
3,302,038 4,292,996 (990,958) 23.08%
4,077,988 3,858,334 219,654 5.6%%0
25,516 73,933 48417 £5.49%
34955257 36,474,537 {1,519,280) 4.1
44,182,947 47152277 {2,969,330) 6.30%
35215 40,320 (5,105) 0.00%
§6,578,961 91,892,397 (5,313,436) -5.78%
697,505 678,571 18,934 2.79%
521,425 507272 14,153 2.79%
10,018 9,745 273 2.80%
1,228,948 1,195,588 33,360 2.79%
71,099,483 68,433,170 2,666,313 3.90%
82,109,327 80,788,980 1,320,347 1.63%
25,697,088 25,514,168 182,920 0.72%
2,941,847 5955412 (3,013,563) -50.60%
893,163 873,908 19255 2.20%
394,035 364,059 29,976 8.23%
6,150,825 4,403,839 1,746,986 39.67%
5,684,116 4,933,619 750497 15.21%
1,946,209 3037863 (1,091,656) -35.93%
196,916,093 194,305,020 2,611,073 1.34%
$ 284,724,002 $ 287393005 $  (2,669,003) -0.93%
Page 6

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 26 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 19 of 55

Manag t’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year 2016

Statement of Net Position — The District’s net position increased between fiscal years 2@15 and 2015-16,
increasing from $194,305,020 to $196,916,093. The change can be seen in the condensed S@hement of Net
Position below as a $2,611,073 increase in net position. O (O

As of July 1, 2014 and the District’s adoption of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Mo, 68,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and B
Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date ijjlr
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. These pronouncements resulted in a restatement of the Distn'ct’{o‘
beginning net position and inclusion of several new accounts on the District’s financial statements. These new
accounts include a $4,320,667 net pension liability, $1,228,948 in deferred inflow of resources (deferred amount
on pensions) and $970,774 in deferred outflows of resources from pension contributions made after the
measurement date and amortization. These are further discussed in Defined Benefit Pension Plans in the

ACCOMpanying pages.

The decrease in in recycled current assets is attributed to the increased recycled expenditures and operations.

The decrease in other water assets is attributed to the new Statewide Community Infrastructure Program (SCTP),
formed to finance the construction and installation of a reservoir that will service properties located within
Community Facilities District AD-14-01. Bonds were issued by community facilities districts for construction
funding for the Reservoir 12.4. Yucaipa Valley Water District is not liable for the bonds, but is an acting agent for
the bondholders. Additional information can be found in Note 18 of the report.

2%
' Yucgipa Valley Water District Page 7
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 27 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 20 of 55

Manag t°s Discussion and Analysis

Fiscal Year 2016
The following table summarizes changes in Net Position for the year ended June 30, 2016. ’{}\
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position OQO
2016 2013 Change % Change
Operating Revenues %
Water Services 3 8,646,208 $ 9,502 880 ) (856,582) 9.01% J\/
Sewer Services 11,196 247 11,316,511 (120,264) -1.06% J(S“
Recycled Services 398,567 443,652 (45,083) -10.16%
Interfund Services Provided 160,000 153,500 6,500 4.23%
Qther Revenue 1,905 3420 (1,515) -44.30%
Total Operating Revenues 20,403,017 21,419,963 (1,016,946) -4.75%
Non-Operating Revenues
Interest Income 90,695 32375 38,320 73.16%
Property Taxes 2,934,543 2,791,142 143,401 3.14%
Other Income 88,905 129,903 (41,000) -31.56%
Total Non-Operating Revenues 3,114,143 2973422 140,721 4.73%
Total Revenues 23,517,160 24,393,383 (876,225) -3.59%
Operating Expenses
Salaries & Benefits - W 3,499 728 3,662,236 (162,508) -4.44%
Salaries & Benefits - S 2624212 2818835 (194,643) -6.91%
Salaries & Benefits - R 261,717 120,819 140,898 116.62%
Operating Expenses - W 4,548 236 4,766,899 (218,643) -4.39%
Operating Expenses - S 3.608871 3,398,750 210,121 6.18%
Operating Expenses - R 433,089 277340 175,549 63.23%
Water Purchases - W 920,036 509,584 410,472 80.35%
Depreciation & Amortization - W 3312043 3,287,938 24,085 0.73%
Depreciation & Amortization - $ 4,086,215 4,084,540 1,673 0.04%
Depreciation & Amortization - R 784,075 T079 6,996 0.90%
Total Operating Expenses 24098262 23,704 260 394,002 1.66%
Non-Operating Expenses
(Gain)/Loss on Asset Disposal 12,116 - 12,116 100.00%
Bond Issuance cost - W - 244,101 (244,101) -100.00%
Interest Expense - W 1,121,714 1,372,938 (431,224) -28.69%
Interest Expense - § 1,111,539 1,147 493 (35,956) -3.13%
Total Non-Operating Expenses 22435 369 2964334 (719,163) -24.26%
Total Expenses 26,343,631 26,668,794 (325,163) -122%
2%d
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page &
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 28 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 21 of 55

Manag@nt’s Discussion and Analysis

{87 Fiscal Year 2016

s

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

2016 2015 Change Cb% Change

Income (Loss) Before Contributions - W b (1,709,210)  § (1,624,707) % {84,503) \;?20%

Income (Loss) Before Contributions - 8 42,615) 36,248 {98,863) 17

Income (Loss) Before Contributions - R (1,074,646) (706,950) (367,696) 52.0 )

Total Income (Loss) Before Contributions {2,826,471) (2,275,409) {551,062) 24.22% / (3

Contributions

Capital Contributions - W 3,108,944 10,622,515 (7.513,571) 70.73%

Capital Contributions - 3 2,132,714 1,531,760 600,954 39.23%

Capital Contributions - R 195,886 93,624 102262 109.23%

5,437,544 12,247,899 {(6,810,355) 77.73%

Change in Net Position - W 1,399,734 8,997,808 (7,598,074) -84.44%
Change in Net Position - § 2,090,099 1,588,008 502,091 31.62%
Change in Net Position - R (878,760) (613,326) (265434) 43.28%

Beginning Net Position 194,305,020 184,332,530 9,972,490 5.41%
Ending Net Position $  196.916,093 § 194,305,020 $ 2,611,073 1.34%

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position provides the nature and source of these
changes. As can be seen in the preceding table, the loss before capital contributions of $2,826,471 and capital
contributions of $5,437,544 were the source of the increase in Net Position of $2,611,073 in Fiscal Year 2016.

On January 17, 2014, Governor Brown issued a proclamation of a state of emergency under the California
Emergency Services Act based on drought conditions. On April 25, 2014, Governor Brown issued a proclamation
of a continued state of emergency based on continued drought. Yucaipa Valley Water District has taken steps over
the years to reduce drinking water use by implementing an extensive recycled water system and asking customers
to cut back usage, resulting in $856,582 decreased water services revenue.

The recycled water operations continues to expand resulting in increased overall expenses.

Fiscal year 2015 the Yucaipa Valley Regional Filtration Facility was shut down for four months due to extended
maintenance and drought conditions. During this time Yucaipa Valley Water District used ground water in lieu of
imported state water. Fiscal year 2016 the plant was shut down for the one month annual scheduled maintenance
attributing the increased water purchases.

The fiscal year 2015 water capital contributions increase was attributed to the Statewide Community
Infrastructure Program (SCIP), formed to finance the construction and installation of a reservoir that will service
properties located within Community Facilities District AD-14-01. Bonds were issued by community facilities
districts for construction funding for the Reservoir 12.4. Yucaipa Valley Water District is not liable for the bonds,
but is an acting agent for the bondholders. Additional information can be found in Note 18 of the repot.

In fiscal year 2015 bond issuance of $244,101 was the cost of the Series 2015A Refunding Bonds sold to refund
Series 2004 A Certificates of Participation, resulting in $451,224 interest savings in Fiscal Year 2016.

P 2l
’ Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 9
LWa”

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 29 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 22 of 55

Manag t’s Discussion and Analysis

{87 Fiscal Year 2016

s

At the end of Fiscal Year 2016, the District had invested $256,658,483 in a broad range of infrastri as shown

below. }*

CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM DEBT ACTIVITY

7
Schedule of Capital Assets ’/0
$)>
2016 2015 Change % Change ‘/6“

Non-Depreciable Assets
Land & Easements $ 5,587,305 $ 5,587,306 $ (1) 0.00%
Water Rights 5,919,976 5,919,976 - 0.00%
Construction in Progress 15,742 545 10,845,469 4,897.076 45.15%
Total Non-Depreciable Assets 27.249.826 22,352,751 4,897,075 21.91%

Depreciable Assets

Structures & Improvements 330,304,418 326,869,552 3,434,866 1.05%
Equipment 6,101,285 6,004,449 6,336 0.11%
Total Depreciable Assets 336,405,703 332,964,001 3,441,702 1.03%
Less Accumulated Depreciation (106,997,046) (99,013,860) (7,983,186) 8.06%
Net Depreciable Assets 229,408,657 233,950,141 (4,541,484) -1.94%
Total Capital Assets, Net § 256,658,485 § 256,302,892 § 355,591 0.14%

As of June 30, 2016, construction in progress increased $4,897,075, primarily in the water and sewer enterprise
funds with the construction the SCIP reservoir project R-12.4 and digester cleaning and cover replacement
project. The closure of infrastructure projects increased the value of structures and improvements.

Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found in Note 3 of this report.

a%d
’ Yucaipa Valley Water District
LWa”

Page 10

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 30 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 23 of 55

Manag@nt’s Discussion and Analysis

{87 Fiscal Year 2016

Long-term obligations, including cuirent portion, total $86,578,961 as of June 30, 2016, 31‘6}91,892,397 as of
June 30, 2015. The long-term obligations were comprised of compensated absences, water re\ﬁnue bonds and
sewer fund state revolving fund (SRF) loans for the WRWRF plant expansion, Regional Brine (02, Extension,

(WISE) Wochholz Improved Salinity Effluent Project, Non-Potable Reservoir NR-10.3.1 project e Crow
Street Recycled Project. Ve
%
Schedule of Liahilities )
&
2016 2015 Change % Change
Long Term Obligations:

Compensated absences 3 869,121 3 797,172 $ 71,949 9.03%
Refunding Revenue Bonds - Water 31,980,145 33,180,510 (1,200,365) -3.62%
State Revolving Fund Loan - Sewer 42,003,486 44,742,442 (2,738,956) -6.12%
Net Pension Liability 4,320,667 4,947,010 626,343) -12.66%
Total Long Term Obligations 79.173.419 83,667,134 {4,493,715) -5.37%

Current Portion of Obligations:

Compensated Absences 429,655 390,914 38,741 9.91%
Refunding Revenue Bonds - Water 1,030,000 980,000 50,000 5.10%
State Revolving Fund Loan - Sewer 2.738.957 2,675,337 63,620 2.38%
Other Current Liabilities 3,206,930 4,179,012 {(972,082) -23.26%
Total Current Obligations 7405542 8,225,263 (819,721) -9.97%
Total Tiabilities $ 86578961 § 91,892,397 § (5,313,436 _5.78%

Additional information on the District’s long-term obligations can be found in Notes 4 through 12 of this report.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the financial position of the Yucaipa Valley
Water District for all those with an interest in the government’s finances.

Questions concemning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial
information should be addressed to Vicky Elisalda, Controller at 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399.

P 2l
’ Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 11
LWa”

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 31 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 24 of 55

Financial Statemenis
Audited Financ%;;ments - Fiscal Year 2016

&>
}Oo
L

@,
2
el
%
Financial Statements
2%
'Q ic.c(iipc Valley Water District Page 12

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 32 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 25 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 2}0
JUNE 340, 2016 QO
2
Enterprise Funds 0.)‘
Water Bewer Eecyeled Water Total 7
ASSETS
Current A ssets
Cash and investments 5 2,610,008 & 7,798,477 § 1920990 § 18,330,465
Accounts recerable, net 1,217,287 1,502,576 25,587 2,905,430
Tazes and assessments receivable 82,000 £2,000
Grants recervable -
Interest receivable 11,095 11,095 2466 24,656
Inventory 712,246 712,246
Prepayments and deposits 210,900 310,900
Total Current Assets 11,544,506 9,312,148 2,009,043 22,865,697
Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted investments 2,541,847 893,163 394,035 4,229,045
Capital assets not being depreciated 12,174,139 9,183,555 5,892,134 27,249,928
Capital assets being depreciated, net 91,935 485 117,668,215 19,804,954 225,408,658
Total Noncurrent A ssets 107,051 475 127,744,533 26,091,123 260,887,531
TOTAL ASSETS 118,595,981 137,057,081 28,100,166 283,753,228
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 550,974 411,885 7,915 Q70,774
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts pavable and acorued liabilities 398,180 391,512 25,516 815,208
Customer dep osits 142700 142700
Developericonstruction deposits 1,060,912 1,060,912
Accrued mterest payable 427 038 761,072 1,188 110
Current portion of longterm liabilities
Compensated absences 243 208 186,447 429 655
Certificates of participation 1,030,000 1,030,000
Staterevolving fund loans 2,738,957 2,738,957
Total Current Liabilities 3,302,038 4,077,988 25516 7405 542
Long-Term Liabilities:
Compensated absences 522,862 346,259 863,121
Certificates of participation 31,980,145 31,980,145
Btate revolving fund loans 42,003,488 42,003 488
Wet penzion liability 2452250 1,833,202 35,215 4,320,667
Total Leng-Term Liab lities 34,055 257 44,182,047 35215 79173419
TOTAL LIABILITIES 38,257 295 48,260,935 50,731 86,578 961
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 697,505 521425 10,018 1,228,948
NET POSITION
et investment in capital assets 71,009,483 82,109,327 25,697,088 178,905,898
Restricted for:
Debt service 893,163 893,163
Capital projects 2,941,847 394,035 3,335,882
Unrestricted 6,150,825 5,624,116 1,946,209 13,781,150
TOTAL NET POSITION 3 20,192,155 & S8 686,606  § 28037332 § 196,916,093
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these tinancial statements.
2a%d
’ Yucaipa Valley Warter District Page 13
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 33 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 26 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSI
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 Cb(o
7>
Enterprise Funds 0‘)‘
Water Sewer Recyeled Water Total "/
OPERATING REVENUES 6_‘
Charges for current services $ 2,646,208 § 11196247 % 398567 % 20241112
Interfund services provided 160,000 160,000
Other revenue 1,905 1,905
Total Operating Revenues 8,806,298 11,198,152 398,567 20,403,017
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and employee benefits 3,499,728 2,624,212 261,717 63835657
Electrieal power 1,228,136 961,273 103,162 2292 571
Water purchases 920,056 920,056
Administrative services 781,378 390,602 56,362 1,228.432
Operating supplies 175,672 443,589 4,426 623,687
Maintenance and repairs 1,023 4118 710,769 68,509 1,802,696
Crystal Creek Water Treatment 757,125 757,125
Brineline charges 150,194 150,194
Depreciation 3,312,043 4,086,215 784 075 8182333
Insurance 99,933 100,522 200455
Professional fees 355,256 529,284 199,934 1,084,474
Other 127,338 322,548 20,696 470,582
Total Operating Expenses 12,280,083 10,319,298 1,498 881 24.098.262
Operating Income (Loss) (3.473,785) 878.854 (1,100314) (3.695243)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income 42332 40,695 7,668 90,695
Property taxes 2,770,043 146,500 18,000 2,934,543
Other income 26,030 2,875 88,905
Loss on disposal of assets (12,116) (12,116)
Interest expense (1,121.714) (1,111,539) (2,233 253)
Total Non-Operating Revenues
(Expenses) 1,764,575 921,469) 25 668 868774
Income (Loss) Before Contributions (1,709,210) (42,615) (1,074,646) (2,826,471)
CONTRIBUTIONS
Capital contributions 3,108,944 2,132,714 195 886 5,437,544
Change in Net Position 1,399,734 2,090,099 (878.760) 2,611,073
Net Position, Beginning of Year 78,792,421 86,596,507 28916,092 194,305,020
Net Position, End of Year $ 80,192,155 § 88686606 § 28037332 3 196916093
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these tinancial statements.
%>
’ Yucaipa Valley Warter District Page 14
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 34 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144

Page 27 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

CARH FLOWS FROM OPEREATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Receipts (payments) from interfund services provided
Payments to supplisrs
Employrment related payments

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CABHFLOWS FROM CAPITAL AWND
AND RELATED FINMANCING ACTIVITIER
Capital contributions
Cash paid for capital assets
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Wet Cash ProvidedTsed)y for Capital and
Eelated Financing Activities

CASHFLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINAMNCING ACTIVITIES
Property taxes received
Other recaipts
Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital
Fmancing Activities

CARH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividends

et IncreasefiDecrease) n Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances, Beginning of Y ear

Balances, End of Year

Reconciliation to Statement of Met Position:
Cash and investments
Restricted cash and investrments - Non-current
Total Cash and Investments

e

C
O
“p

0

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these tinancial statements.

2%

D
Enterprize Funds b
W ater Sewer Recycled Water Tctal 7
$ 8641720 0§ 11207067 § 379161 § 20,227,943
160,000 (160,000)
(5,559,686 (3,267,036 (501,508 (9,328,228
(3,960,078 (2,955,991) (269,137 (7,185,206
(718,044 4,824,040 (391,482 3,714,514
3,011,541 1,504,105 107,303 5,022,949
(5,723,295 (2,502,617 (878,412 (5,104,328
(980,000 (2,675,336) (3,655,336)
(1314013 (1,156,388 (2,470,401
(5,005,771} (4,430,236 (771,108 (10,207,116
2,758,504 146,500 18,000 2,623,084
36,030 2,875 38,905
2,844 614 145375 18,000 3,011,989
36,806 35,160 5,440 78,415
(2,842 ,395) 578,348 (1,138,151) (3,402,198
14,395 240 8,113,292 3,453,176 25,961,708
$ 11,552.845 % 2,691,640 § 2315025 % 22,552.510
8610998 § 7798477 % 1,920,050 § 18330465
2,941,347 353,163 394,035 4,229,045
$ 11,552,345 § 8,691,640 $ 2315025 $ 22,559,510
Page 15

’ Yucaipa Valley Warter District
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 35 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144

Page 28 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS, Continued
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

?’OO
“p
\

0
Enterprize Funds v
Water Sewer ERecycled Water Total 7
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING Income (Loss)
TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cperating Income (loss) § (3,473,785) % 878,854 § (1,100,314 $ (3,695,245}
Adjustments to reconcile operating meome to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 3,312,043 4,088,215 764,075 8,192,333
Lass o disposal 12,118 12,116
Change in azzets and liabilities:
Receivables, net (49,927 2,915 (12,406) B04138)
Compensated absences 56,267 54,423 110,690
Prepayrnents and deposits (81,914 81,214
Developer and customer deposits 45,349 45,349
Inventory 105,726 105,726
Accounts and other payables (non-capitaly (127 302) 181,835 (48417 61168
Net pension liability (355,489) (265749 (5,105) (626,343}
Change in deferred outflows of resources related to pensions (180,062 (134 60&) (2,588) (317,236
Change in deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 138,934 14,153 273 33,360
et Cash Provided by Operating Activities 3 (718,044 § 4824040 % (391,482) § 3,714,514
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING A CTIVITIES
Centributed capital assets § 57,403 § 228609 % 38,583 § 414,595
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these tinancial statements.
2a%d
’ Yucaipa Valley Warter District Page 16
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 36 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 29 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
STATEMENT OF FIDCUIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES %
AGENCY FUND 2}
JUNE 340, 2016 OO
“p
‘0
0
SCIPR-12.4 S
Reservoir < 5
Agency Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 988,193
LIABILITIES
Due to other governments 3 988,193
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these tinancial statements.
2a%d
’ Yucaipa Valley Warter District Page 17
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 37 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 30 of 55

Financial Statemenis
Audited Financ%;;ments - Fiscal Year 2016

&>
}Oo
L

@,
%
%
Notes to the Financial Statements
2%
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 18
QW”

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 38 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 31 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %
JUNE 30, 2016 2‘
C;
o,
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES \/0
L
A. Reporting Entity OJ‘

7,
Yucaipa Valley Water District (the District) is a special-purpose government district providing water
distribution and sewer collection and treatment for consumers within its service area. The financial
statemnents of the District have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP), as applied to enterprise funds. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting, and
financial reporting principles.

B. Basis of Presentation

Fund Financial Statements - The District solely operates as a Special-Purpose Government which means it is
only engaged in business-type activities, accordingly activities are reported in proprietary funds.

The District has the following major proprietary funds:

e Water — This fund accounts for the activities of the District's drinking water supply system.

e Sewer — This fund accounts for the activities of the District’s sewage (reatment plant, pumping
stations, and collection systems.

* Recycled Water — This fund accounts for the activities of the District's recycled water supply system.

The SCIP R-12.4 Reservoir agency fund has no measurement focus but utilizes the accrual basis of
accounting for reporting its assets and liabilities. This fund is used to account for receipts and disbursements
associated with Assessment District AD-14-01, which is administered by, but is not the liability of, the
District.

C. Basis of Accounting

Proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the ecoromic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded at the time
liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in
which the District receives value without directly giving equal value in return, include property taxes, grants,
entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year
for which the taxes apply. Property taxes are collected for the District by the Counties of San Bernardino and
Riverside. Revenue from grants, enfitlements and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revermes and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revermies and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
commection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
District’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses include the
costs of sales and services, the costs of employee benefits, maintenance of capital assets, and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues
and expenses.

2%
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 18
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 39 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 32 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %
JUNE 30, 2016 f
C
%,
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (Continied) /0
/
D. Capital Assets OJ‘

o
G
Capital assets purchased or constructed are carried at cost. Constructed costs include labor, materials and
construction period interest expense (net of interest income, where applicable). Capitalization threshold is
$5,000. Contributed assets are stated at estimated fair market value at the time received by the District.
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives of the assets:

Structures and improvements 10 — 50 years
Equipment 4 — 10 years

E. Restricted Investments

Various resources of the District are limited as to their use by law or by debt covenants and are classified on
the balance sheet as restricted investments. Undisbursed debt proceeds are restricted for repayment of the
debt and project costs. Also, fees imposed on new real estate development are restricted by law for the
construction of capital improvements which benefit the development projects.

F. Inventory
Inventory is stated at the lower of cost, using the average cost method, or market.
G. Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash and investments are held in the District's cash management pool. Therefore, for purposes of the
statement of cash flows, the District considers the entire pooled cash and investment balance to be cash and
cash equivalents.

H. Investments

Investments are reported at fair value which is the amount at which financial instruments could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties. All fair values are determined by external consultants.
Investments are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Recurring fair value measurements are those that
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements require or permit in the statement of net
position at the end of each reporting period. Fair value measurements are categorized based on the valuation
inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable
inputs. Management reviews investments for events that might affect fair value measurements of investments
on a monthly basis. The evaluation is performed at the lowest level of identifiable unit of account.

I. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

2l
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 19
LW”

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 40 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 33 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %\
JUNE 30, 2016 e

C
%,
7

J. Uncollectible Accounts OJ‘

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (Continited)

The District provides an allowance for doubtful accounts for all accounts deemed uncollectible. As of
June 30, 2016, this allowance was estimated at $10,546 in the Water Fund and $14,357 in the Sewer Fund.

K. Credit/IVlarket Risk

The District provides water, sewer, and recycled water services to local residential and commercial customers.
As part of normal operating practices, credit is granted to local customers, on an unsecured basis.

L. Use of Restricted Resources

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted
resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

M. Net Position

Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets reduced by accumulated depreciation and by any
outstanding debt incurred to acquire, construct, or improve those assets.

Restricted net position consists of those restricted assets reduced by liabilities related to those assets.

Unrestricted net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of net investment in capital assets or
the restricted component of net position.

N. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to
pensions, pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s California Public
Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) plan and additions to/deductions from the plan’s fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit
pavments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Q. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources until then. The government only has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. It is the
deferred outflow related to pensions which is the result of the implementation of GASB 68 representing the
District's pension contributions made subsequent to the measurement date and change in proportion.

2%
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 20
LW”

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 41 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 34 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %
JUNE 340, 2016 7 e
oﬂ}a
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (Contintied) /0
/
O. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, (Continued) 0\)‘{/
G

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources until that time. The government has only one type of item, deferred amounts related to
pensions. This item is the result of the implementation of GASBE 68 representing the change in proportion
and the difference between projected and actual earnings on investments.

P. New Accounting Pronouncements

Effective in this Fiscal Year

GASB Statement No. 72 — In February 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and
Application. The primary objective of this statement is to define fair value and describe how fair value should
be measured, define what assets and liabilities should be measured at fair value, and determine what
information about fair value should be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The Statement is
effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2015, or the 2015-16 fiscal year. The District implemented this
statements as of July 1, 2015.

Effective in Future Fiscal Years

GASB Statement No. 74 — In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for
Postemplovment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans. The objective of the Statement is to address the
financial reports of defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet specified
criteria. The Statement requires more extensive note disclosures and RSI related to the measurement of the
OPER liabilities for which assets have been accumulated. The Statement is effective for periods beginning
after June 15, 2016, or the 2016-2017 fiscal year. The District has not determined the effect of the statement.

GASB Statement No. 75 — In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions. The objective of the Statement is to replace the
requirements of GASB Statement No. 45. In addition, the Statement requires governments to report a liability
on the face of the financial statements for the OPEB provided and requires governments to present more
extensive note disclosures and required supplementary information about their OPEB liabilities. The
Statement is effective for the periods beginning June 15, 2017, or the 2017-2018 fiscal year. The District has
not determined the effect of the statement.

GASB Statement No. 77 — In August 2015, GASB issued Statement No 77, Tux Abatement Disclosures.
The Statement requires state and local governments to disclose information about tax abatement agreements.
The Statement is effective for the periods beginning after December 15, 2015, or the 2016-2017 fiscal year.
The District has not determined the effect of the statement.

2l
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 21
LW”

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 42 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 35 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %
JUNE 30, 2016 2‘ O
o,
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (Confinied) \/0
L
P. New Accounting Pronouncements, (Continued) OJ‘

oy
%
Effective in Future Fiscal Years (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 78 — In December 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 78, Pensions Provided through
Certain Mudtiple-Emplover Defined Benefit Pension Plans. This statement amends the scope and
applicability of Statement No. 68. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2015. The district has not determined the effect on the financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 80 — In March 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 81, frrevocable Split-Tnterest
Agreements. The objective of this statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable
split-interest agreements by providing recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a
governmer is a beneficiary of the agreement. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2016. The district has not determined the effect on the financial
statements.

GASB Statement No. 81 — In March 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Tnterest
Agreements. The objective of this statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable
split-interest agreements by providing recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a
government is a beneficiary of the agreement. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2016. The district has not determined the effect on the financial
statements.

GASB Statement No. 82 — In March, 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 82, Pension Issues an amendment of
GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73. This statement addresses issues regarding (1) the presentation
of payroll-related measures in required supplementary information, (2) the selection of assumptions and the
treatment of deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting
purposes, and (3) the classification of payments made by employers to satisfy employee (plan member)
contribution requirements. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning
after June 15, 2016, except for the requirements of this statement for the selection of assumptions in a
circumstance in which an employer’s pension liability is measured as of a date other than the employer’s most
recent fiscal year-end. In that circumstance, the requirements for the selection of assumptions are effective
for the employer in the first reporting period in which the measurement date of the pension liability is on or
after June 15, 2017.

2%
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 22
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 43 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144

Page 36 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS

“p

7
%
Cash and investments are classified as the accompanying financial statements as follows: J‘/\/
s}
Statement of Net Position
Cash and investments $ 18,330,465
Restricted investments - Non-current 4,229,045
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents 988,193
Total Cash and Investments $ 23,547,703
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2016, consist of the following:
Petty cash b 800
Cash 1,038,505
Investments 22,508,398
Total Cash and Investments $ 23,547,703

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the Yucaipa Valley Water District's

Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the Yucaipa Valley Water District by the
California Government Code and the District’s policy, whichever is more restrictive. The table also identifies
certain provisions of the California Government Code that address interest rate risk and concentration of credit
risk. This table does not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are governed by the
provisions of debt agreements of the Yucaipa Valley Water District, rather than the general provisions of the

California Government Code.

Authorized
Investment Type

U.S. Treasury Obligations
Money Market Accounts
Local Agency Investment Fund (L ATF)

2%
' Yucaipa Valley Water District

Maximum M aximum
Percentage Investment
of Portfolio in One Issuer
None None
None None
None None
Page 23

W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 44 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 37 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %
JUNE 30, 2016 2‘ O
o,
NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS, (Continued) \/0
L
Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements OJ‘

ey
G
Investment of debt proceeds held by the bond trustee is governed by provisions of the debt agreement, rather than
the general provisions of the California Government Code or the District’s investment policy. The table below
identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by bond trustee. The table also identifies
certain provisions of the debt agreement that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum Maximum
Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment
Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer

U.S. Treasury Obligations None None None
U.S. Agency Securities None None None
Banker's Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10%
Repurchase Agreements 365 days None None
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit None 30% None
Money Market Mutual Funds None None None

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to
changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the Yucaipa Valley Water District manages its exposure to
interest rate tisk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash
flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time
as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District's investments to market interest rate fluctuations
is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the District's investments by maturity:

Maturity
12 Months
Investment Type Fair Value or Less
LAIF $ 19133251 % 19,133,251
U.S. Treasury Bills 499,795 499,795
Money Market Funds 2,875,352 2,875,352
Total $ 22,508,398 3 22,508,398
F 3t )
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 24
W*

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 45 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 38 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %
JUNE 30, 2016 2‘ O
o,
NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS, (Continued) \/0
L
Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk OJ‘

Z
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recogmized statistical rating
organization. Presented below is the rating as of year-end for each investment type:

S&P
Rating at
Fair Value June 30, 2016
LAIF $ 19,133,251 Unrated
U.S. Treasury Bills 499,795 AA+
Money Market Funds 2,875,352 AAAmM

Total $ 22,508,398

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for imvestments is the risk that, in the event of the failure
of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code
and the Yucaipa Valley Water District's investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would
limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for
deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or
local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated
under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the
collateral pool must equal at least 110 percent of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California
law also allows financial institutions to secure deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value
of 150 percent of the secured public deposits. Bank deposits are covered by the federal depository insurance
(FDIC) for the first $250,000. As of June 30, 2016, the District has $1,172,388 of cash in excess of the FDIC
limit. The uninsured deposits were held by financial institutions, which are legally required by the California
Government Code to collateralize the District’s deposits as noted above.

Investment in State Investment Pool

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (L ATF) that is regulated by California
Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. LATF has a
portion of the pool invested in structured notes and asset backed securities. The fair value of the District's
investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the District's
pro-rata share of the tair value provided by LATF, for the entire L AIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost
of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by L ATF,
which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. LAIF is not registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission and is not rated. Deposits and withdrawals to and from L AIF are transferred on the basis of $1 and
not fair value. Accordingly, under the fair value hierarchy, L ATF is uncategorized.

2%
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 25
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 46 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 39 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %\
JUNE 30, 2016 )\ O
O@}A
NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS, (Confinued) /0
L
Fair Value Hierarchy OJ‘

7
The district categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The district has the following recurring fair value measurements as of year-end.

Asg of June 30, 2016:
Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Investments by Fair Value Level Amaount (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
U.S Treasury Bills $ 499,795 3 - $ 499,795 $ -
Total Investments by Fair Value Level $ 499,795 3 - $ 499,795 $ -
Local Agency Investment Fund 19,133,251
Money Market Funds 2,875,352
Total Investments $ 22,508,398

In determining fair value, the district’s custodians use various methods including market and income approaches.
Based on these approaches, the district’s custodians utilize certain assumptions that market participants would use
in pricing the asset or liability. The district’s custodians utilize valuation techniques that maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

Various inputs are used in determining the value of the district’s investments and other financial instruments.
The inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the risk associated
with investing in those securities. These inputs are summarized in the three broad levels: Level 1 - quoted
prices in active markets for identical investments, Level 2 - other significant observable inputs (including
quoted prices for similar securities, interest rates, prepayment speeds, credit risk, etc.) and Level 3 - significant
unobservable inputs (including the district’s own assumptions in determining the fair value of investments).

2%
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 26
LW”

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 47 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 40 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (EZC\
JUNE 340, 2016 2\ O
@
NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS }‘\/
Q.
The following tables summarize capital asset activity during 2015-2016: 0\_2‘/
‘/O“
Balance Balance
‘Water Fund June 30, 2015 Increases Decreases June 30, 2016
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land and easements $ 4,111,106 8 4,111,106
Water rights 432,941 432,941
Construction in progress 4833568 § 4835654 % (2,039,130) 7,630,002
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 9,377,615 4,835,654 (2,039,130) 12,174,139
Capital assets being depreciated:
Structures and improvements 128,481,254 1,875,285 (7,842) 130,348,697
Equipment 4,358,181 180,014 (176,898) 4,361,297
Total capital assets being
depreciated 132,839,435 2,055,299 (184,740) 134,709,994
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Structures and improvements (36,040,228)  (3,126,212) 7,842 (39,158,598)
Equipment (3,594.857) (185,831) 164,781 (3,615,907)
Total accumulated
depreciation (39,635,085) (3,312,043) 172,623 (42,774,505)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 93,204,350 (1,256,744) (12,117 91,935,489
Water Fund capital assets, net $102,581,965 § 3578910 $ (2,051,247) § 104,109,628
Depreciation expense was $3,312,043 for the year ended June 30, 2016.
2a%d
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 27
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 48 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144

Page 41 of 55

YUCATPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016

O%}

C
@
NOTE 3 — CAPITAL ASSETS, (Continued) }‘\/
%
Balance Balance \_2‘/
Sewer Fund June 30, 2015 Increases Decreases June 30, 2016 5
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land and easements $ 4,111,106 $ 4.111,106
Water rights 432,941 432,941
Construction in progress 351,097 § 2523920 8 (654,697) 2,220,320
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 7,314,332 2,523,920 (654,697) 9,183,555
Capital assets being depreciated:
Structures and improvements 173,668,697 831,758 174,500,455
Equipment 1,589,268 30,245 (26,525) 1,592,988
Total capital assets being
depreciated 175,257,965 862,003 (26,525) 176,093,443
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Structures and improvements (53,017,151) (4,052,737 (57,069,888)
Equipment (1,348,387) (33,478) 26,525 (1,355,340)
Total accumulated
depreciation (54,365,538) (4,086,215) 26,525 (58,425,228)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 120,892 427 (3,224,212) 117,668,215
Sewer Fund capital assets, net $ 128,206,759 § (700,292) $& (654,697) & 126,851,770
Depreciation expense was $4,086,215 for the year ended June 30, 2016.
2%
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 28
W”

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 49 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 42 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %\
JUNE 30, 2016 2‘ O
NOTE 3 — CAPITAL ASSETS, (Continued) }':/
2>
Balance Balance 0\_)>
Recycled Water Fund June 30, 2015 Increases Decreases June 30, 2016 5
Capital assets not being depreciated
Construction in progress $ 5600804 § 882,087 & (650,757 5,892,134
Capital assets being depreciated:
Structures and improverments 24,719,600 735,665 % - 25,455,265
Equipment 147,000 - - 147,000
Total capital assets being
depreciated 24,866,600 735,665 - 25,602,265
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Structures and improvements (4,983,836) (769,375) - (5,753,211)
Equipment (29.400) {14,700) - {44,100
Total accumulated
depreciation (5,013,236) (784,075) - (5,797,311)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 19,853,364 (48410) - 19,804,954
Recycled Water Fund capital assets, net $§ 25,514,168 § 833,677 $§ (650,757) § 25,697,088

Depreciation expense was $784,075 for the year ended June 30, 2016.

NOTE 4 - REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS SERIES 2015 A

In 2015, the District sold certificates of participation in the amount of $30,810,000 to refund the 2004 Certificates
of Participation and to pay delivery costs of'the certificates.

Certificates began maluring on September 1, 2015 with semi-annual interest payments due March 1 and
September 1 at various interest rates from 3.00 to 5.00 percent. Principal payments are due annually September 1
at various amounts from $980,000 to $2,240,000. The final principal payment of the certificates is scheduled for
September 1, 2034, See Note 12 for revenues pledged. The Bonds are recorded in the Water Fund.

2%
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 29
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 50 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 43 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %\
JUNE 30, 2016 2‘0
.
NOTE 4 - REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS SERIES 2015 A, (Continued) \/0
L
Maturities of the revenue refunding bonds are as follows: OJ‘/
%
Fiscal Year 2015 Refunding Revenue Bonds Series A
Ending Principal Interest Total
2017 3 1,030,000 3 1,265,662 3 2,295,662
2018 1,065,000 1,228,912 2,293,912
2019 1,115,000 1,179,737 2,294,737
2020 1,170,000 1,122,612 2,292,612
2021 1,230,000 1,062,612 2,292,612
2022-2026 7,005,000 4,463,685 11,468,685
2027-2031 8,790,000 2,674,516 11,464,516
2032-2035 8,425,000 752,962 9,177,962
Total $ 29830,000 $ 13,750,698 $§ 43,580,698

NOTE 5— STATE REVOLVING FUND LOAN - 2006

In August 2006, the District entered into a loan agreement with the State of California Water Resources Control
Board to provide funding for the expansion and modification of the Henty N. Wochholz Wastewater Treatment.
Plant. The maximum amount of $44,748,356 has been drawn. The loan accrues interest at a rate of 2.4 percent
anmually. Principal and interest payments are due in 20 annual installments. The first payment occurred in
September 2009. The District has pledged all revenues and amounts legally available to repay the loan. The loan
is recorded in the Sewer Fund.

Fiscal Year 2006 State Revolving Fund Loan
Ending Principal Interest Total
2017 3 2147973 3% 775696 % 2,923,669
2018 2,199,524 724,145 2,923,669
2019 2,252,313 671,356 2,923,669
2020 2,306,368 617,301 2,923,669
2021 2,361,721 561,948 2,923,669
2022-2026 12,686,525 1,931,819 14,618,344
2027-2029 8,366,252 404,755 8,771,007
Total $ 32320676 % 5,687,020 § 38,007,696
o
" Yug:ipc: Valley Water District Page 30
e

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 51 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 44 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %
JUNE 30, 2016 2‘ O
%,
NOTE 6 — STATE REVOLVING FUND LOAN-2010 \/0
L

In June 2010, the District entered into a loan agreement with the State of California Water Resources Co@ﬂ
Board (SWRCB) to provide the funding for the construction of the Regional Brineline Extension Project. T]ﬁ’dﬁ
maximum amount of $9,752,100 has been drawn plus interest accrued during the period of construction of
$183,714. The loan accrues interest at a rate of 2.7 percent annually. Principal and interest payments are due in

20 anmual installments. In accordance with Amendment No. 1 of the loan agreement, the first payment occurred

in December 2013. The District has pledged all revenues and amounts legally available to repay the loan. The
loan is recorded in the Sewer Fund.

Fiscal Year 2010 State Revolving Fund Loan
Ending Principal Interest Total
2017 b 412,791 % 236483 % 649,274
2018 423,936 225,337 649,273
2019 435,383 213,891 649,274
2020 447,138 202,136 649,274
2021 459,211 190,063 649,274
2022-2026 2,488,866 757,502 3,246,368
2027-2031 2,843,503 402,865 3,246,368
2032-2033 1,247,786 50,760 1,298 546
Total 3 8,758,614 § 2,279,037 $§ 11,037,651

NOTE 7—- STATE REVOLVING FUND L.OAN —2013 (WISE)

In December 2011, the District entered into a loan agreement (Wise) with the State of California Water Resources
Control Board (SWRCB) to provide the funding for Recycled Water Fund projects. The maximum amount of the
loan is $2,988,364. The loan accrues interest at a rate of 2.2 percent annually. Principal and interest payments are
due in 20 annual installments. The first payment occurred in March 2014, The District has pledged all revenues
and amounts legally available to repay the loan. The loan is recorded in the Sewer Fund.

Fiscal Year 2013 (Wise) State Revolving Fund Loan
Ending Principal Interest Total
2017 3 127,966 § 57285 % 185,251
2018 130,782 54,470 185,252
2019 133,659 51,592 185,251
2020 136,599 48,652 185,251
2021 139,605 45,647 185,252
2022-2026 745.466 180,790 926,256
2027-2031 831.156 95,101 926,257
2032-2033 358,625 11,876 370,501
Total 3 2,603,858 § 545413 § 3,149,271
F )
" Yug:ipc: Valley Water District Page 31
e

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 52 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 45 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %
JUNE 340, 2016 f e
%,
NOTE 8 — STATE REVOLVING FUND LOAN —-2013 (R-10.3) /0
/

In December 2011, the District entered into a loan agreement (R-10.3) with the State of California V&%}
Resources Control Board (SWRCB) to provide the funding for Recycled Water Fund projects. The maximuiy’,
amount of the loan is $871,570. The loan accrues interest at a rate of 2.2 percent anmually. Principal and interest
payments are due in 20 annual installments. The first payment occurred in March 2014. The District has pledged
all reveres and amounts legally available to repay the loan. The loan is recorded in the Sewer Fund.

Fiscal Year 2013 (R-10.3) State Revolving Fund L.oan

Ending Principal Interest Total
2017 3 37493 % 16,784 § 54,277
2018 38,318 15,959 54,277
2019 39,161 15,116 54,277
2020 40,023 14,254 54,277
2021 40,903 13,374 54,277
2022-2026 218,416 52,970 271,386
2027-2031 243,522 27,864 271,386
2032-2033 105,075 3,480 108,555
Total 3 762911 % 159801 % 922,712

NOTE 9— STATE REVOLVING FUND LOAN — 2013 (CROW)

In December 2011, the District entered into a loan agreement (Crow Street) with the State of California Water
Resources Control Board (SWRCB) to provide the funding for Recycled Water Fund projects. The District
received the amount of $310,179. The loan accrues interest at a rate of 2.2 percent annually on amounts drawn.
Repayment will be made in 20 annual installments. The first payment occurred in March 2016. The District has
pledged all revenues and amounts legally available to repay the loan. The loan is recorded in the Sewer Fund.

Fiscal Year 2013 (Crow) State Revolving Fund I.oan
Ending Principal Interest Total
2017 3 12,734 § 6,520 $ 19,254
2018 13,014 6,240 19,254
2019 13,300 5,954 19,254
2020 13,593 5,661 19,254
2021 13,892 5,362 19,254
2022-2026 74,181 22,091 96,272
2027-2031 82,708 13,564 96,272
2032-2035 72,962 4,056 77,018
Total 3 296,384 $ 69,418 § 365,832
o
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 32
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 53 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 46 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %
JUNE 30, 2016 7

‘(O}A
‘4,
It is the District's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation, sick leave and c@%}
G

NOTE 10 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

time, a portion of which will be paid to employees upon separation from the District. At June 30, 2016, to
accruals for Water, Sewer and Recycled Water funds amount to $766,070, $536,706, and $0 respectively. The
District estimated, based on historical trends, that approximately $243,208, $186,447, and $0 of the Water, Sewer,
and Recycled Water balances, respectively, will come due during fiscal year 2016-2017.

NOTE 11 - CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The following table summarizes changes in long-term liabilities balances for the fizscal year ended June 30, 2016:

Balance Balance Amount Due
Tune 30, 2015 Additions Repayments Tune 30, 2016 in2016-17
2015 Refunding Revenue Bonds $ 30,810,000 % - $ (980,000) $  29,830000 § 1030000
Unamortized preminm 3,350,510 - (170,365) 3,180,145
Total Certificates of Participation 34,160,510 - (1,150,365) 33,010,145 1,030,000
State Revolving Fund Loan - 2006 34,418,304 - (2,097,5629) 32,320,675 2,147 973
State Revolving Fund Loan - 2010 9,160,553 § - (401,939) 8,758,614 412791
State Revolving Fund Loan - 2013 Wise 2,729,141 - (125,283) 2,603,858 127 966
State Revolving Fund Loan - 2013 R-10.3 799,602 - (36,690) 762,912 37,493
State Revolving Fund Loan - 2013 Crow 310,179 - (13,795) 296,384 12,734
Total State Revolving Fund Loans 47,417,779 - (2,675,336) 44,742 443 2,738,957
Compensated absences 1,188,086 110,690 1,298,776 429 655
Net pension liability 4,947,010 (626,343) 4,320,667
Total Tong-term Liabilities $ 87,713,385 % 110,690 § (4,452,044) $ 83372031 $ 4198612

NOTE 12 - REVENUE PLEDGED

The District has pledged future water fund revenues, net of specified operating expenses, to repay $30,810,000 in
refunding revenue bonds (2015 bonds) issued in 2015 as disclosed in Note 4. Net revenues are defined in the
2015 bond documents as operating income, less specified operating expenses, plus specified non-operating
income. The 2015 bonds refunded the 2004 Certificates of Participation (COP). Proceeds from the COPs
provided financing for the construction of the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility (YVRWFF).
The 2015 bonds are payable through 2035. Wet revenues are anticipated to equal at least 110 percent of annual
principal and interest payments. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the 2015 bonds is
$43,580,696. Principal and interest paid for the current year and total customer net revermes were $2,294,014 and
$5,356,963, respectively.

For the state revolving fund loans recorded in the Sewer Fund, the District has pledged all revenues and amounts
legally available to repay the loans.

2l
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 33
LW”

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 54 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 47 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %
JUNE 30, 2016 2‘0
%,
NOTE 13 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN \/0
L

Plan Description — All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the Disﬁ%@,
Miscellaneous Employee Pension Plan (Plan), a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension pl
administered by the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS). Benefit provisions under the
Plan are established by State statute and may be amended by District resolution. CalPERS issues publicly
available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and
membership information. These reports can be found on the CalPERS website.

Benefits Provided — CalPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and
death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees, and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of
credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with five vears of total service are eligible
to retire at age 60 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits afier
10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit,
or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as
specified by the Public Employees” Retirement Law.

The Plan's provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2016, are summarized as follows:

PEPRA -
Miscellaneous Miscellaneous

Prior to January 1, On or after January

Hire Date 2013 1,2013

Formula 2% @ 60 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 60 62
Monthly benefits, as a % of annual salary 2.00% 2.00%
Required employee contribution rates 7% 6.250%
Required employer contribution rates 15.915% 6.237%

Contributions — Section 20814 (c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement law requires that the emplover
contribution rates for all public employers are determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective
on the July 1 following notice of a change in rate. Funding contributions for the Plan are determined annually on
an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary
to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any
unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the difference between the actvarially
determined rate and the contribution rates of employees. Contributions to the pension plan from the District were
$882,127 for the year ended JTune 30, 2016.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
As of June 30, 2016, the District reported a liability of $4,320,667 for its proportionate share of the collective net

pension liability.

2%
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 34
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 55 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 48 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %

JUNE 30, 2016 2» O
%,

NOTE 13 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (Continued) \/0

L
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015 and the total pension liability used to calculate
net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014 rolled forward to June 30, 201
using actuarial procedures. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating employers, actuarially determined. The District’s proportion of the net collective pension liability as
of June 30, 2014 and 2015, was as follows:

Proportion - June 30, 2014 0.07950%
Proportion - June 30, 2015 0.06295%
Change - Increase (Decrease) (0.01655%)

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the District recognized a pension credit of $28,111. At June 30, 2016, the
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date $ 882,127
Changes between expected and actual experience 36,869
Changes in proportion and differences between
actual contributions and proportionate share of
contributions 51,774 8 705,259
Changes in assumptions - 348,818
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments - 174,867

$ 970,770 $ 1,228,944

$882,127 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended
June 30, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Year Ended
June 30,

2017 $ (378,242)
2018 (383,995)
2019 (334,348)
2020 (43,716)
$ (1,140,301)

o

' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 35
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 56 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 49 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %\
JUNE 30, 2016 2‘ e
O‘(O}N
NOTE 13 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (Continued) \/0
L

Actuarial Assumptions — The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuations were dete
using the following actuarial assumptions. /6
Valuation Date June 30, 2014
Measurement Date June 30, 2015
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.65%

Inflation 2.75%

Projected Salary Increase Varies by entry age and service

Investment Rate of Return 7.65%

Morttality Derived using CalPERS' Membership Data

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014 valuation
were based on the results of a January 2014 actuarial experience study for the period of 1997 to 2011. Further
details of the Experience Study can be found on the CalPERS website.

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65 percent. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current
contribution rate and that the District’s contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between
actuarially determined contributions rates and the employee rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active
and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all period of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

P 3 )
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 36
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 57 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %
JUNE 340, 2016 f e
%,
NOTE 13 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (Continited) /0
/

In determining the long-term expected 7.65 percent rate of return on pension plan investments, CalPER S took%)b
account both short and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash ﬂows/(s«
Based on the expected benefit payments of the Public Emplovees’ Retirement Fund, CalPERS indicated that a 19
vear horizon was ideal in determining the level equivalent discount rate assumption. Using historical returns of
all the funds® asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10
years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal retumns for
both short-term and long term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate for
return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return of retumn that arrived at the same present value
of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long term returns. The expected rate of
return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one
quarter of one percent. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major
asset class are the same for each Plan. These geometric rates of return are net of administrative expenses and are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return Real Rate of Return
Asset Class Target Allocation Years 1-10 Years 11+

Global Equity 51% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19% 0.99 2.43
Inflation Sensitive 6%% 0.45 3.36
Private Equity 10% 6.83 6.95
Real Estate 10%0 4.50 5.13
Infrastructure and Forestland 2% 4.50 5.09
Liquidity 2% {0.53) (1.05)

Total 100%

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate — The following presents the District’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.65 percent, as well as what
the District’s proportionate share of the net pension Liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
that iz 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

1% Decrease 6.65%
Net Pension Liability $ 7,054,835
Current Discount Rate 7.65%
Net Pension Liability 3 4,320,667
1% Increase 8.65%
Net Pension Liability b 2,072,112

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.

2l
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 37
LW”

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 58 of 221

Page 50 of 55



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 51 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %\
JUNE 30, 2016 7

G
Q
(O}»

NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS 7z
7z
The District has entered into contracts for various services and projects that will require payments in future 1‘@:@,
years. The contract amounts and remaining commitments as of June 30, 2016, are summarized below: \/6
Contract Remaining

Description Amounts Commitment
Water fund and General Operating projects $ 9,683,202 $ 1,722,147
Sewer fund projects 2,571,947 190,193
Recycled Water fund projects 894,003 137,849

Total $ 13,149,152 $ 2,050,189

NOTE 15— INTERFUND ACTIVITY

Interfund Services Provided

The Sewer fund reimburses the Water fund for the expenses related to administration, accounting and general
services. The reimbursement is reflected in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position as the
revenue "Interfund services provided” in the Water Fund and included in the expense " Administrative services"” in
the Sewer Fund. The amount retmbursed for these services was $160,000 as of June 30, 2016.

NOTE 16 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions, injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During the yvear ended June 30, 2016, the District
purchased insurance through various commercial carriers to cover these risks with various limits including the
Real Property & Business Personal Property blanket limit of $95,041,921. The District has had no seitled claims
resulting, from these risks that exceeded its commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

NOTE 17 - PROPERTY TAXES

Under California law, property taxes are assessed and collected by the counties up to 1 percent of assessed value,
plus other increases approved by the voters. The property taxes go into a pool, and are then allocated to entities
based on complex formulas. The property tax calendar for San Bernardino and Riverside County is as follows:

Lien date Jamiary 1

Levy date July 1

Due date November 1 and February 1

Collection dates December 10 and April 10

o

' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 38
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 59 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 52 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %

JUNE 30, 2016 2‘ O
%,

NOTE 18 - ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 7z

z
The District acts in a fiduciary capacity for an assessment district that was formed to finance the construction
installation of a reservoir that will service properties located within the assessment district. The bonds issued by/G«
the assessment district are payable solely from the revenues of annual special taxes levied against land within the
district and do not constitute an indebtedness of the Yucaipa Valley Water District. Yucaipa Valley Water
District is not liable for the bonds, but acts as an agent for the bondholders. Since the District is acting in an
agency capacity, the assets and liabilities of the assessment district have been excluded from the District’s
statement of net position. The amount outstanding on the bonds at June 30, 2016 was $11,015,000.

P 3 )
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 39
LW

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 60 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 53 of 55

Financial Statemenis
Audited Financ%;;ments - Fiscal Year 2016

o
%
L
7
L,
%
%
Required Supplementary Information
2%
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 40
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 61 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 54 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (87,{\
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE )}O
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY — LAST TEN YEARS* @)
AS OF THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016 (OJ;\
@,
2016 2015
M
Proportion of the collective net pension liability 0.06295% 0.07950%
Proportionate share of the collective net pension liability $ 4,320,667 $ 4,947,010
Covered - employee payroll $ 3,953,813 b 4,616,557
Proportionate Share of the collective net pension liability as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll 109.28% 107.16%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension
liability 78.40% 79.82%
* - Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore, only two years are shown.
2a%d
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 41
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 62 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144 Page 55 of 55

YUCATPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (Ezb
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS LAST TEN YEARS* )\O
AS OF THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016 O@
{0
2016 2015 2,
-
Actuarially determined contributions $ 550,441 $ 570,529 ‘/O“
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 882,127 570,529
Contribuiion deficiency (excess) 3 (331,686) $ -
Covered-employee payroll $ 4,165,826 $ 3,953,813
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 21.18% 14.43%
* - Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore, only two years are shown.
)
’ Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 42
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 63 of 221



0%
' Yucaipa Valley Water District  Workshop Memorandum 16-145
W

Date: October 11, 2016
Subject: Overview of the California Drought and Yucaipa Valley Water District’s

Action Plan Related to the State Water Resources Control Board Water
Conservation Restrictions

On May 5, 2015, the State Water Resources Control Board (“SWRCB”) adopted emergency
regulations to achieve a 25% statewide reduction in potable urban water use. These stringent
water use regulations required the Yucaipa Valley Water District to achieve a 36% reduction from
the amount of drinking water produced in 2013. In March 2016, the SWRCB modified the
emergency water conservation requirements for Yucaipa Valley Water District to a 34% reduction
from the amount of drinking water produced in 2013. In June 2016, the District self-certified a

water conservation reduction of 20%. Each level of regulated water conservation requirement is
illustrated in the chart below as the red-dashed line.

Water Consumption and Drought Regulatory Requirements
500,000
450,000
400,000
350,000
300,000
250,000
200,000 \)

150,000

Thousand Gallons

100,000

e Potable Water Demand (kgal)
50,000

= = = S\WRCB Drought Compliance Goal

Jul-12

Sep-12

Jul-13
Sep-13
Nov-13

Jul-14

Jan-12
Mar-12
May-12
Nov-12
Jan-13
Mar-13
May-13
Jan-14
Mar-14
Sep-14
Jul-15
Sep-15
Jul-16

May-14
Nov-14
Jan-15
Mar-15
May-15
Nov-15
Jan-16
Mar-16
May-16
Sep-16
Nov-16

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 64 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-145 Page 2 of 11

During the current drought, the Yucaipa Valley Water District has been able to increase the

amount of recycled water delivered throughout our service area. The chart below shows the
monthly delivery quantity to District customers.

Monthly Recycled Water Demand
100,000

90,000
80,000
70,000

60,000

50,000

40,000

30,000

20,000

||I | | II|| ”
O ||| II

~N o

Thousand Gallons

N NN N N ™M omom m M S ¥ & & & & 10NN WO ;MmN O O O O
TR e L r Ly L UL ru L N P N L P L UL S PN L L N L N LR U
C = > o > € - >SS o > € % > 9 > € = >= o > ¢ = > =
c &8 © 2 90 0 @« & ® 2 0o 0 8 &8 © 32 0 0 @ & m 2 0 0 &8 & © 3
- = = woz - =S woz - = s woz - = s woz - = >

The customers of the Yucaipa Valley Water District responded accordingly and significantly
reduced the amount of drinking water consumed per person. As shown below, the per capita
drinking water consumption dropped significantly from 366 R-GPCD?! in August 2013 to 222 R-
GPCD in August 2015, representing a decrease of 39%. However, due to the hot weather this

summer and the eased water conservation requirements statewide, the R-GPCD jumped
significantly.

1 R-GPCD - Residential gallons per capita per day.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 65 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-145 Page 3 of 11

Monthly Water Consumption
Residential Gallons per Capita per Day

400.00
3
R ™
o
350.00
o~
o
™ )
8 R
1)
300.00 o = @
N o~ N
O n Y]
in Q P = B
N ~ N
250.00 N
N ~ N4 N
3 N - I~
~ N g ~N_m
2 N &
— o~
200.00 )
™~ - IS <
© o — o)
™~ ~
3 R-RS = © -
o) - - © — A
150.00 3 el < m
N\—|
o N3
S 2 = -
p =
~
&) o~
100.00 D
50.00 | |
0.00
NN I IINC I N SN N N N TN BN BN I I RN N B N

; NS N, Ny YWY S N RN S
& @’b* @Q’* SR éo“ & @’b* ®®* R éo“ & & ®®* N éo“ & @’b‘ @%A S

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 66 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-145 Page 4 of 11

P M)
' Yucaipa Valley Water District

W

Self-Certification of Supply Reliability for Three Additional Years of Drought
Pursuant to Section 864.5 of Title 23 of the California Code of Regulations
for the Yucaipa Valley Water District

Supporting Analysis and Calculations
June 20, 2016

Background

On April 1, 2015, Governor Brown issued Executive Order B-29-15 that directed the State VWater Resources
Control Board to impose water supplier restrictions to achieve a statewide 25 percent reduction in potable urban
usage through February 2016. As a result of this Executive Order, the Yucaipa Valley Water District was required
to achieve an emergency water conservation standard of 36% based on a reported Residential Gallons per
Capita per Day (R-GPCD) of 265.0 for the pericd of July 2014 to September 2014. The regulations were
approved by the State of California, Office of Administrative Law on May 18, 2015 and required compliance with
the emergency water conservation standard through February 2016.

On November 13, 2015, Governor Brown issued Executive Order B-36-15 that directed the State VWater
Resources Control Board to extend water conservation restrictions until October 31, 2016 if drought conditions
persist through January 2016. The State of California, Office of Administrative Law subsequently approved
regulations that provided more flexibility to urban water suppliers by considering specific factors that influence
water use throughout California. The regulations changed the emergency water conservation standard for the
Yucaipa Valley Water District from a 36% conservation standard 1o a 34% conservation standard based on
monthly water use during the same month in Calendar Year 2013,

On May 9, 2016, Governor Brown issued Executive Order B-37-16 that directed the State Water Resources
Control Board to extend water conservation restrictions through January 2017 and make adjustments in
recognition of the differing water supply conditions throughout California. This Executive Order is based on the
likelihood that drought conditions will likely continue for the foreseeable future and additional action by both the
State Water Resources Control Board and local water suppliers will be necessary to prevent waste and the
unreasonable use of water. Based on the recently released regulations, Urban Water Retail Suppliers are
required to develop a localized “stress test” approach to ensure at least a three year supply of water is available
to customers under the ongoing drought conditions.

The Yucaipa Valley Water District recognizes the importance of the newly enacted regulations and has based
the data sources and calculations on the following requirements and assumptions:

+ The current conditions to use in the self-certification calculations are as of October 1, 2016,

+ The precipitation in Water Year 2017 mirrors that of Water Year 2013, precipitation in VWater Year 2018
mirrors that of Water Year 2014, precipitation in Water Year 2019 mirrors that of Water Year 2015.
(Section 864.5(b)(1)). ©Only precipitation data from the California Data Exchange Center (e.g.,
hitp //cdec.water.ca.gov/cgi-progs/prevprecip/PRECIPOUT), or CIMIS station data or an equivalent
source may be used. Do not average precipitation.

State Water Resources Control Board — Self-Certification Statement Page 1 of 5
Yucaipa Valley Water District — June 20, 2016

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 67 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-145 Page 5 of 11

¢ There are no temporary change orders that increase the availability of water to any urban water supplier
are issued by the State Water Resources Control Board in the next three years.

+ Potable water supply only includes sources of supply available to the supplier that could realistically be
used for potable drinking water purposes during the time period identified in the regulation.

¢ |f a water source is not of sufficient quality to be realistically treated and use as potable water by the
water retailer, it shall not be included as a water supply.

¢ Consider requirements and assumptions that are used that impact supply reliability, for example, in the
case of groundwater, if your water agency has its own requirement not to lower the water level of an
aquifer below a certain amount, provide an explanation in the “Notes and comments”.

s Groundwater: use the quantity of groundwater that is accessible, without addition of new wells or
completion of treatment projects that would fall outside the three-year projection period (2016-17 through
2018-19).

¢ If newdiversions or treatment equipment or facilities will come on-line between now until the end of Water
Year 2019, sufficient evidence must be provided to indicate is it going to be implemented (e.g., funds
have been allocated, contract with a builder has been approved).

« [|f a water supply is dedicated for another purpose (e.g., agriculture) and is therefore committed for
another use, it is not available and shall be subtracted for the subtotal of water supplies.

¢ |dentify all sources of data used (e.g., “our water product information is from Supervisor Control and Data
Acquisition (SCADA)” and include a link to the source and identify a pinpoint citation to the pertinent
information).

¢ Provide supporting documentation the covers each water source. For example, when the amount of water
obtained from one river is summed in one number and there are multiple diversion or treatment points,
then the supporting documentation shall describe each diversion and/or treatment point and the amount
of water from each that are summed together and equal the amount on the worksheet.

+ Recycled water for purple pipe systems is not a potable supply and is not included as a supply on
Worksheet 1. You may use the “Notes and Comments” section in this section to describe non-potable
recycled water

Given the requirements and assumptions above, the Yucaipa Valley Water District decided to take a
conservative approach by adding additional stress to the anticipated water sources of supply thereby
implementing a proactive water conservation strategy for our community. Without the certainty of knowing what
the future holds for our water resources, it is prudent and reasonable to increase the probability of
severe/extreme drought conditions in California.

Determine the Annual Total Potable Water Demand

Available Water Supplies — Wholesaler Supplied

The Yucaipa Valley Water District relied upon water production data generated monthly by the Water Resources
Department to tabulate the amount of potable water production in calendar year 2013 and calendar year 2014.
The total amount of potable water produced by the Yucaipa Valley Water District is provided below.

Potable Water Potable Water Calculated Annual
Production for Production for Potable Water
Calendar Year 2013 Calendar Year 2014 Demand
Potable Water Production (acre feet) 12,040 12,011 12,026
State Water Resources Control Board — Self-Certification Statement Page 20of 5

Yucaipa Valley Water District — June 20, 2016

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 68 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-145

Estimate the Annual Total Potable Water Suppl

The Yucaipa Valley Water District receives imported water from two State Water Contractors: San Bemardino
Valley Municipal Water District and San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency.

llhp’\.\i BERNARDINO

MUNICIPAL
WATER DISTRICT

www sbvmwd.com
_— WWW . Sgpwa.com

Both State Water Contractors have provided the Yucaipa Valley Water District with anticipated water deliveries
for Water Years 2017, 2018, and 2019 as shown below:

San Bernardino Valley

Municipal VWater Total Wholesale

San Gorgonio Pass

District \Water Agency Supply by \Water Year
Water Year 2017 (acre feet) 7,763 500 8,283
Water Year 2018 (acre feet) 4,324 500 4.824
Vater Year 2019 (acre feet) 4,997 500 5,497
Total Anticipated Supply (acre feet) 17,084 1,500 18,584

Internet reference for San Bernardino Valley Municipal VWater District: http:/Avww.sbvmwd.com/home/showdocument ?id=4188
Internet reference for San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency: hitp/fwww sgpwa. com/wp-content/uploads/2018/06/SWRCB-Emergency-
Conservation-Regs-Three-Year-Projection- June-201 6. pdf

In order to perform the “stress test” of the water supply sources based on the SWRCB criteria outlined above,
the Yucaipa Valley Water District reduced the anticipated quantity of imported supply included in SWRCB
Worksheet 1. Total Available Water Supply for Individual Water Supplierto represent an average of the lowest
two years of imported water projected to be delivered to Yucaipa Valley Water District by the San Bemardino
Valley Municipal Water District [7,763 + 4,324 + 4,997 = 17,084 / 3 = 4,661 acre feet peryear]. This conservative
approach will directly reduce the calculated imported water supply from the San Bernardino Valley Municipal
Water District by 3,101 acre feet over the next three years [17,084 — 13,983 = 3,101].

Page 6 of 11

San Bernardino Valley
Municipal VWater

San Gorgonio Pass

Total Wholesale

Dictrict Water Agency Supply by Water Year
Water Year 2017 (acre feet) 763 4,661 500 8263 5161
Water Year 2018 (acre feet) 4324 4,661 500 4824 5161
Water Year 2019 (acre feet) 4807 4661 500 &5409% 5,161
Total Anticipated Supply (acre feet) 474,084 13.983 1,500 48,584 15,483

The calculated reduction in imported water does not mean the water supply will not be used by the Yucaipa
Valley Water District. Rather, by de-obligating the dependency of 3,101 acre feet of imported water supply, the
Yucaipa Valley Water District will purchase this water supply and recharge the local groundwater supply to hedge
against unexpected water supply issues during the next three years, or to reduce the impacts of future drought
conditions beyond Water Year 2019.

State Water Resources Control Board — Self-Cettification Statement
Yucaipa Valley Water District — June 20, 2016

Page 3 of 5

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 69 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-145 Page 7 of 11

Available Water Supplies — Surface Water Sources

The Yucaipa Valley Water District receives potable water from the Oak Glen Surface Water Filtration Facility.
Based on the SWRCB criteria outlined above, the quantity of potable water for the “Stress test” will be less than
the anticipated quantity of potable water received from these surface water sources of supply.

Anticipated Quantity of “Stress Test” Quantity of

Potable Water from the Potable Water from the
Oak Glen Surface Water Oak Glen Surface Water
Filtration Facility Filtration Facility
Water Year 2017 (acre feet) 240 220
Water Year 2018 (acre feet) 229 220
Water Year 2019 (acre feet) 234 220
Total Anticipated Supply (acre feet) 703 660

The Yucaipa Valley Water District believes that based on the criteria required for the self-certification, the quantity
of water provided by the Oak Glen Surface Water Filtration Facility will be consistent at 220 acre feet per year
for the next three water years. The difference between the anticipated gquantity of potable water from surface
water sources of 43 acre feet [703 acre feet — 660 acre feet = 43 acre feet] will provide additional surface water
supplies that can be recharged into the local groundwater supply for future use.

Available Water Supplies — Local Groundwater Water Sources

The Yucaipa Valley Water District
produces groundwater from local
groundwater basins. In recent years,
the following quantity of local
groundwater was produced by the
Yucaipa Valley Water District:

o Calendar Year 2013:
o 7,243 acre feet

e Calendar Year 2014:
o 9,027 acre feet

¢ Calendar Year 2015:
o 4,905 acre feet

Based on the SWRCB criteria
outlined above, the quantity of
potable water for the “Stress test” °
from groundwater sources will be =
based on the least amount of water &
received from groundwater sources
of supply over the past three years
or 4,905 acre feet per year. o
reducmg the rehar?ce yon IocaI F éﬁ%";@ . = d
groundwater supplies for the next three years the Yucaipa Valley Water Dlstnct estimates that apprommately
1,500 acre feet to 2,000 acre feet of groundwater can be saved each year for future use. The specific quantity
depends on the amount of groundwater produced by other water producers that have access to the Yucaipa
Groundwater Basins.

State Water Resources Control Board — Self-Certification Statement Page 4 of &
Yucaipa Valley Water District — June 20, 2016

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 70 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-145 Page 8 of 11

“Stress Test” Quantity of

Treated Water from local
groundwater sources

VWater Year 2017 (acre feet) 4,905
Vater Year 2018 (acre feet) 4,905
Water Year 2019 (acre feet) 4,905
Total Anticipated Supply (acre feet) 14,715
The Yucaipa Vally Water  ayailable Stdra

Distric_t b_elieves_ that based on -1,691 Change in
the criteria required for the self- ¢
certification, the 4,905 acre feet
of groundwater produced per
year will result in sustainable
groundwater levels and a
possibility that groundwater «
levels may increase throughout
the Yucaipa basin area.

Available Storage gapacit;l

The reduction in groundwater ~=&
R P # Western
production over the past two e ‘Heights

years has resulted in more [ NB9,735AF 1 o
roundwater in storage. For - #orel &~ Cal e,
g g i/ . * a;mesu

example, from calendar year | i 153,792 AF
2014 to calendar year 2015, the .
change in storage space above
the groundwater table decreased »
from 3568635 acre feet to
355,944 acre feet. Thisis a good
indicator that an additional 1,691
acre feet of groundwater was
saved in the local groundwater basin. Additional information about the Yucaipa Basin area and the reports
prepared by the Yucaipa Valley Water District can be downloaded from the following link:

http://documents. ywwd.dst.ca.us/government/california/self-
certification/140417 vucaipa sy full report geoscience.pdf

On June 15, 2016, the Yucaipa Valley Water District Board of Directors authorized the continuation and
refinement of the original study. Information about the future anticipated scope of work can be downloaded from
the following link:

http://documents. ywwd.dst.ca. us/government/california/self-certification/160615 _16-058 geoscience. pdf

These reports provide important groundwater monitoring data that will be available to monitor the conditions of
the groundwater basins in the future.

State Water Resources Control Board — Self-Certification Statement Page 5 of 5
Yucaipa Valley Water District — June 20, 2016

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 71 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-145 Page 9 of 11

{"os Anaceles Times

Weaker water conservation numbers prompt
fears that California is going back to its old bad
habits

Matt Stevens - October 5, 2016

Cncetdnre watar the frnnt am v F 9 hnea an Zelzah aniia in Encinn aadior thic vaar (kdichaol Owan
. Klers water e mont iawn of 4 Nouse fetzan Avenue ENCMNO earier mis yea Aichae £

ue]
mn
T
=
(5
i

Californians’ water conservation slipped for the third consecutive month in August,
prompting new alarm from regulators about whether relaxed water restrictions may be
causing residents to revert to old habits as the state enters its sixth year of severe drought.

The trend raises new questions about Californians’ willingness to continue austere
conservation after spending the last two years dramatically reducing their water use by
ripping out lawns, installing water-sipping appliances and shortening their showers.

Conservation numbers varied widely across the state, with some places actually saving
more water compared with 2015 levels. But other communities are turning the spigot
back on, and state data show that several of the worst offenders are the affluent cities
that previously have been criticized for heavy consumption.

Regulators on Wednesday singled out Malibu as one example of a city returning to
profligate water use. The water district that serves the city saw its water-savings drop

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 72 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-145 Page 10 of 11

from 20.4% in August 2015 to just 7.9% in August 2016. The 22,000 residents served by
the district used about 300 gallons per person per day, according to state data. By
contrast, Los Angeles residents used an average of only 84 gallons per day in August.

The Santa Fe Irrigation District, which serves upscale pockets of northern San Diego
County, including Rancho Santa Fe, saw its residents use about 525 gallons per person
per day. The district had ramped up conservation efforts after being tagged as one of the
state’s heaviest water users and had managed to save 36.6% in August 2015. But this
August, the savings fell to 14%.

Beverly Hills, long a target of regulators’ scorn, actually increased its water savings in
August by about two percentage points compared with the same month in 2015.

“Everybody liked to pick on Beverly Hills in the beginning, but Beverly Hills is using less
than half of what Malibu is,” State Water Resources Control Board Chairwoman
Felicia Marcus said.

Statewide, people in cities and towns cut their water use by just 17.7% in August,
compared with the same month in 2013, state board staff members said. That's a
dip from August 2015, when Californians reduced their consumption by 27%, beating the
target of a 25% reduction set by Gov. Jerry Brown.

“We’'re at yellow alert,” Marcus said. “I’'m not ready to go to red alert until we see the
details.”

Regulators lifted mandatory conservation for the vast majority of the state’s water
suppliers beginning in June. That month, water savings fell sharply to 21.5%, and
conservation has continued to flag each month since.

Water board members have defended their decision to ease the rules, saying that while a
25% statewide reduction inurban water use was necessary for a time, it could not
continue indefinitely. They cite significant rains and snow in Northern California, which
replenished some reservoirs, as helping reduce the need for conservation.

But faced with lower conservation numbers, officials on Wednesday acknowledged that
easing the restrictions may have contributed to increased water consumption.

“There are some communities back over 500 gallons [per person] per day,” Marcus said.
“I'm not going to say, ‘What'’s the story there?’ But that’s a question. ... Did they stop
messaging, or what’s happening?”

Mark Gold, UCLA’s associate vice chancellor for environment and sustainability, called
the August numbers “completely predictable.”

“This is what we’ve come to expect when there are strong messages from Sacramento that
the crisisisn’t as bad as we thought it was,” Gold said. “People, on their own, in avoluntary
way, don’t do as much to conserve.”

Californiais broken down into 10 so-called hydrologic regions, and in every one, residents
used more water per person per day in August 2016 than they did during the same month
in 2015.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 73 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-145 Page 11 of 11

On average, Southern Californians used about 104 gallons per person per day, about 10
gallons more than they had the year prior, making them the fourth-lowest users among
the 10 regions.

In April 2015, Brown ordered a 25% statewide reduction in urban water use, which the
board tried to achieve by assigning conservation “standards” to each of the state’s urban
suppliers. Some were told to slash their usage by as much as 36%; others could cut as little
as 4% and remain in compliance.

The suppliers were required to hit their targets beginning in June 2015. In the 15 months
since, Californians have cumulatively cut their consumption by about 23%, state officials
said. They have saved almost 660 billion gallons of water over that period — enough to
provide water for 10 million residents for a year.

Some water officials were more optimistic than others about the August conservation
numbers. Rob Hunter, general manager of the Municipal Water District of Orange
County, noted that this August was two degrees warmer than August 2013, the baseline
against which water savings was measured. So an 18% statewide reduction is something
“we should be congratulating people for, not castigating people for,” he said.

“That’s an incredible achievement,” Hunter said. “There was some concern there would
be zero conservation, that everybody would start using more,” he added. “That’s not
happening.”

But water board staff members also said conservation efforts tend to start sliding around
this time of year, as the temperatures cool and water use dips. As urban Californians use
less water, there is less savings to be had, officials say.

When the water year ended last week, forecasters and water officials warned that it will
be hard to predict whether this winter will bring the rain and snow the state so desperately
needs. And if a sixth year of drought is on the horizon, regulators have warned that they
could return to mandatory conservation.

“While last year’s rain and snow brought a respite for urban California, we are still in
drought, and we can’'t know what this winter will bring,” Marcus said in a statement
released later Wednesday. “What we do know is that climate change will continue to make
our water years even more unpredictable, so we need to retain our conservation habits for
the long term, rain or shine, drought or no drought.”

Source: http://www.latimes.com/local/lanow/la-me-In-water-conservation-20161005-snap-story.html

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 74 of 221


http://www.latimes.com/local/lanow/la-me-ln-water-conservation-20161005-snap-story.html

' M )
o

W

Date:

Subject:
Reservoir

Yucaipa Valley Water District

Workshop Memorandum 16-146

October 11, 2016

Report on Water Quality and the State Water Project Crafton Hills

The Crafton Hills Reservoir
Enlargement Project increased
the operating storage capacity
of the Crafton Hills Reservoir
from 85 acre-feet (27.7 million
gallons) to about 225 acre-feet
(73.3 million gallons). The
expanded storage capacity
was designed to enhance the

overall operational flexibility
and reliability of imported water
delivered to Yucaipa,

Calimesa, Beaumont, Banning
and Cabazon.

This summer, several lakes
experienced severe algae
growth that resulted in taste
and odor issues for water
treatment plants throughout the
State.

The Yucaipa Valley Water
District received numerous
taste and odor complaints due
to increased levels of
Geosmin' and MIB?2.

Both Geosmin and MIB are low
molecular  weight  volatile
tertiary alcohols. In water
sources, these compounds are
produced by some species of
algae and bacteria.

PROPROSED PROJECT COMPONENTS
[ Proposed Reservoir Enlargement
Q Cut Slopes
= Spoil Area
Il Proposed Dam

Staging Area
" Load Restricted Staging Area ;
: Staging and Supplemental Borrow Area .'-:'.’—)'
| | Supplemental Borrow Area
=== Maintenance Road

S PROPOSED GRARION HILLS

" RESERVOIRIENI=ARGEMENTHg

=== Proposed Yucaipa Connector Pipaline
EXISTING COMPONENTS

= Existing EBX | Pipeline

= Existing Access Road

- Existing Yucaipa Pipeline

1 Geosmin, chemically known as 1,2,7,7-tetramethyl-2-norborneol.
2 MIB, is chemically known as 2-methylisoborneol.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 75 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-146 Page 2 of 5

2-Methylisoborneol
cllHZDO

While the microfiltration system at the water filtration facility is a physical barrier to algae and
bacteria, the chemical compounds are able to pass through the microfiltration system, but these
compounds are significantly reduced by the nanofiltration membranes.

MICROFILTRATION

Microfiltration

Ultrafiltration

Manofiltration

TR ETETTFR R VT L asa e TR
Reverse Osmosis b

LA SISO SSUSSNEE . '
\ Increasing Pressure

Decreasing Pore Size

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 76 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-146 Page 3 of 5

Both Geosmin and MIB have extremely low odor thresholds to humans. It is not uncommon for
the average person to detect the presence of these compounds in the 10 to 30 part per trillion
(ng/L) concentration range.

THE MEASUREMENT OF WATERPURITY

This is equivalent to
about fifteen minutes out
of one day.

This is equivalent to about
one and a half minutes out of
one day.

This is equivalent to about 32
seconds out of a year.

This is equivalent to about three
seconds out of a century.

This is equivalent to about three seconds
out of every hundred thousand years.

This is equivalent to about two and a half
minutes out of the age of the Earth (4.5 billion
years).

Often during the summer months, water systems that depend upon surface water sources will
experience complaints from consumers regarding taste and odor which can directly be attributed
to Geosmin and MIB.

The purpose of this agenda item is to provide an update on the current status of the statewide
and local algae issues.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 77 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-146 Page 4 of 5

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 78 of 221



Page 5 of 5

Draining of the Crafton Hills Reservoir
by the Department of Water Resources
due to construction issues in Mentone.

- June 2016

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 79 of 221




M)
’ Yucaipa Valley Water District  \Workshop Memorandum 16-147

W”
Date: October 11, 2016

Subject: Overview of the Planned Purchase of Additional Water Rights by the
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency

On July 27, 2015, the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (“SGPWA”") adopted a Facility Capacity
Fee that consists of an infrastructure charge of $171 per equivalent dwelling unit and a fee to
purchase additional water rights of $6,231 per acre foot!. The Facility Capacity Fee charged by
the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency is a new fee that will be collected prior to the issuance of
building permits in order to secure water rights needed for new development.

On October 10, 2016, the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency will be conducting a board workshop
to discuss the attached report.

The purpose of this agenda item is to discuss the availability and purchase of water rights by the
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency for new development.

1 The San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (“SGPWA”") published rate for the purchase of new water rights at
$6,231 per acre foot will need to be calculated for each new development since the purchase of new water
rights will be directly dependent on the State Water Project annual average reliability factor and the amount
of water rights needed to serve each project. For example, a new dual-plumbed hone will only need to
purchase water rights for the drinking water portion of the anticipated water demand and not to meet
irrigation needs. The SGPWA published cost for the purchase of water rights of $6,231 does not
include the cost of transporting water in the State Water Project for delivery to the Yucaipa Valley
Water District.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 80 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-147 Page 2 of 18

S EST, 1988 286 W. Cromwell Avenue

l ()VO ST& Fresno, CA 93711-6162

Tel: (559) 449-2700
PRITCHARD Fax: (559) 449-2715
:
An Employee Owned Company www.ppeng.com
Memorandum
To: Jeff Davis, General Manager

San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency

From:  Dale Melville & Dan Flory

Subject: Water Acquisition Options for SGPWA

Date: September 29, 2016

This memorandum is structured to provide the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency
("SGPWA”) pertinent background information on potential water transfer opportunities,
with a focus on presenting water purchase opportunities, water partnering opportunities
and issues related to accomplishing water transfers into or within the State Water
Project service area.

Introduction

In accordance with your authorization dated July 12 to our June 24, 2016 proposal,
Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group (‘P&P") has prepared this memorandum to assist
SGPWA in assessing options available to acquire additional long-term water supplies.
This memorandum has been updated from our August 26 draft, to incorporate your
comments and our discussion last week for additional information on selected items.

Based on our previous discussions, SGPWA desires to supplement its current 17,300
acre-feet (“af’) of State Water Project (“SWP") Table A amount with an additional 2,500
af of reliable annual supply by 2020, and ultimately 17,000 to 23,000 afly of additional
reliable annual supply at build-out of the service area; additionally, we discussed that
with the groundwater banking facilities existing (Beaumont Cherry Valley WD) and
planned (SGPWA), there appears to be sufficient groundwater recharge facilities within
the SGPWA service area to meet demands for the next 15 years, assuming the surface
water for those programs is available. This memorandum is intended to provide
SGPWA with a listing of the surface water options that may be available for SGPWA to
consider acquiring to reliably meet their long-term demand. In addition to identifying
potential sources of long-term water supplies for SGPWA, issues associated with those
supplies are also presented.

In July 2013, Kennedy/Jenks Consultants prepared a memorandum evaluating potential
water transfer opportunities for SGPWA. A lot has changed in the past three years!
First, California has endured continuation of drought (2012-201 6) that significantly
reduced SWP and CVP deliveries south of the Delta (65%, 35%, 5%, 20%, 60%,
respectively for the SWP and 30%, 25%, 0%, 0%, 5%, respectively for ag Westside
CVP). Second, the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (“SGMA") was enacted

G:\San Gorgonlo Pass Water Agency-25371253716002 - Wa' 2 / 1' 8 n Options\_DOCS\Reports\FINAL memo 8-2016.doc

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 81 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-147 Page 3 of 18

To: Jeff Davis, SGPWA Dals: September 29, 2016
Subject: Water Acquisition Oplions for SGPWA Page 2 of 17

in 2014 which has already had significant changes in water resource planning although
implementing agencies are just forming and initial groundwater sustainability plans are
at least three years away. These two conditions have had a huge impact on the value of
the water resource.

In addition to the need for an increased reliable water supply, the information developed
herein may have a side benefit by providing information on alternative water supplies
that may be helpful to the SGPWA in evaluating the business case for participating in
the California WaterFix (“CWF”"). One of the considerations in evaluating the water
supply benefits of the CWF is to compare the relative availability, costs, and risks
associated with alternative water supplies.

This memorandum addresses the alternative water supplies that could be acquired and
transferred to the SGPWA. These alternative supplies include discussions on the
viability of additional Table A water from the SWP, contract water from the Central
Valley Project (“CVP”), and appropriated water rights water. Additionally, this study
reviews the water supply alternatives and partnerships described in the July 24, 2013
memorandum prepared by Kennedy/Jenks and provide an update to the status of those
water supply alternatives. To the extent the information is readily available (or otherwise
known to P&P), this memorandum also addresses the potential availability, market
costs, and risks of these water supply alternatives. The scope of this request was to
address the issues related to acquiring and transferring long-term supplemental water
supplies, but not to identify specific pricing or terms with individual sellers.

Water Acquisition Opportunities

SWP Table A Amounts — Ag Contractors

Permanent sale of approximately 150,000 acre-feet (“af”) of SWP Table A have
occurred since the Department of Water Resources (‘DWR”) and most of the SWP
contractors executed the Monterey Amendment in 1995. The seller in each situation has
been ag contractors, primarily from Kern County. The 130,000 af limit place by Kern
County Water Agency (“KCWA”") on permanent sales from their service area has been
achieved, whereby member unit districts in KCWA have completed sales to SWP urban
contractors; no additional Table A sales are allowed form KCWA without a major policy
shift by KCWA. Since then, the only permanent Table A sales were by Dudley Ridge
WD (“DRWD"), Tulare Lake Basin WSD (“TLBWSD"), or (related to the QSA) the
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (‘MWDSC") as shown in Table 1. In
DRWD and TLBWSD Table A sales, the transfers were from individual landowners
within districts that had adopted policies allowing landowners to sell their Table A
amount, subject to certain conditions that limit the impact to other district landowners. In
each situation, the initial sales terms were negotiated outside the transferring districts,
directly between the selling landowner and a water user (buyer) in the transferee
agency. Once the seller-buyer agreements were brought to the districts, the districts
developed appropriate agreements with the seller, buyer, and the other SWP contractor,

G:\San Gorgonlo Pass Water Agency-2537\253716002 - Water Acquisition Options\_DOCS\Reports\FINAL memo 9-2016.doc

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 82 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-147 Page 4 of 18

To: Jeff Davis, SGPWA Date: September 29, 2016
Subject: Water Acquisition Opticrs for SGFWA Pege 3 of 17

after which a formal request and necessary documentation (including CEQA
compliance) were prepared and submitted to DWR for contract amendments to reflect
the change in the Table A amount of the two SWP contractors.

In early August, we brought to SGPWA's attention a landowner in TLBWSD with 411 af
of Table A amount for sale at about $5,100/af. These are more typical of the agricultural
(*ag”) Table A sales anticipated in the future...smaller landowners deciding to either get
out of farming or to reduce their reliance on relatively high-cost SWP water. Some of
this is due to pending realities of SGMA in an over-drafted groundwater basin as well as
other increasing regulations on farming, scales of economy for smaller growers, and
similar constraints.

The other SWP ag contractor with a similar landowner transfer policy as DRWD and
TLBWSD is Empire West Side ID (“EWSID"); landowners in EWSID have SWP Table A
allocated at 0.4 af/acre. The two remaining ag contractors (Oak Flat WD and Kings
County) do not have similar transfer policies. Discussion with the general manager of
Oak Flat WD indicated that the district and landowners are in a water acquisition mode,
not a selling mode. In conversation with the Kings County Administrative Officer, the
County has contracts with others for the use of the water until 2035.

Table 1. Recent Long-Term Table A Water Sales
Year Transferor Transferee

Quantity ~ Price / Terms

2001 TLBWSD Antelope Valley — East 3,000 af | NA
Kermn WA
2001 TLBWSD DRWD 3,973 af | from/to same
landowner
2003 | TLBWSD Alameda - Zone 7 400 af | NA
2004 | TLBWSD Kings County 5,000 af | NA
2004 MWDSC Coachella WD (per QSA) | 88,100 af | NA
2005 MWDSC Desert WA (per QSA) 11,900 af | NA
2005 TLBWSD Coachella WD 9,900 af | NA
2006 | TLBWSD Kings County 305 af | from/to same
landowner
2009 | DRWD Mojave WA 14,000 af | $5,200/af, phased
over 10 year period
2010 DRWD Antelope Valley — East 1,998 af | $5,850/af
Kern WA
2010 | TLBWSD Antelope Valley — East 1,446 af | $5,850/af
Kern WA

G:\San Gorgonlo Pass Waler Agency-2537\253716002 - Water Acquisition Options\_DOCS\Reports\FINAL memo 9-2016.doc

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 83 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-147 Page 5 of 18

To: Jeff Davis, SGPWA Date: September 29, 2016
Subject: Water Acguisition Options for SGPWA Page 4 of 17

SWP Table A Amounts — Urban Contractors

Ventura County (officially the Ventura County Watershed Protection District) is
comprised of three water agencies, specifically: City of Ventura (“City”), Casitas MWD
(“Casitas”) and United Water Conservation District (“United”) with 10,000 af, 5,000 af,
and 5,000 af, respectively. Historically, Ventura County has used only a small portion of
its SWP supplies; United typically take delivery of about 2 taffy and the other two
entities are currently not taking SWP water. Ventura County has traditionally been a
seller into the Turnback Pool and the four-year (2013-2016) demonstration Multi-Year
Water Pool. We discussed with each of the general managers their intentions to more
fully utilize their SWP water. They each indicated that they are currently exploring
infrastructure improvements to deliver their allocations from their full Table A supply. In
the interim, further discussions with one or more of these three entities could develop
creative multi-year programs whereby SGPWA could lease or acquire water the three
agencies can't deliver to their own service area. Saying that, they appear reserved in
doing something different with their SWP supplies.

Issues with each agency and examples of potential multi-year programs are discussed
below.

1. City (known locally as Ventura Water) has reportedly been discussing with
MWDSC about constructing an intertie where by MWDSC could use the City's
water when allocations are beyond the City’s demand. In our discussions, the
City showed some interest in banking or similar arrangements during periods
where their SWP water is not being fully utilized (bank for future delivery to their
service area). It was also learned that the City’s long-term plans may include
direct potable reuse of about 6 taf/y treated wastewater, which could satisfy
much of their future demand. Assuming an arrangement between the City and
MWDSC is not imminent or pre-ordained, SGPWA could offer to recover a
portion of the City’s SWP costs in exchange for the SWP water that the City is
allocated but can't deliver; in effect, this would be a multi-year sale or lease of
City water, which is not addressed or prohibited in the SWP Water Supply
Contracts. Alternately, SGPWA and Ventura County (on behalf of the City) could
engage in a 2 for 1 exchange with a cost reimbursement component similar to
the 2016 AVEK-SB' and AVEK-SCVWD? exchange agreements, but for multiple
years,

2. Lake Casitas has storage capacity (254 taf) to withstand a 20 year drought cycle
for Casitas; storage is now at 37% of capacity, which has Casitas more
incentivized to make better use of their SWP water, especially if the drought
continues. Casitas and the City are planning a 4 taf/ly emergency connection

¥ 2016 AVEK-SB (Santa Barbara CFC&WCD) agreement is a one-year agraement (SWPAO #16017) where AVEK provides up to
10 taf to S8 in 2016, with 8B retuming 50% of the water to AVEK by 2026; SB also paid AVEK $500/af for the water retained by S3
glotal $2.5M if the full 10 taf is delivered, ylelding $500/af for the water retained by SB).

2016 AVEK-SCVWD (Santa Clara Valley WD) agreement Is a one-year agreement (SWPAO #16019) where AVEK provides up fo
10 taf to SCVWD In 2016, with SCVWD returning 50% of the water to AVEK by 2026; SCYWD also pald AVEK $300/af for the water
delivered to SCVWD, plus $250,000 (total of $3.25M if the full 10 taf is delivered, yielding $650/af for the water retained by
SCVWD),

G:\San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency-2537\253716002 - Water Acquisition Options\_DOCS\Reports\FINAL memo 8-2016.doc

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 84 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-147 Page 6 of 18

To: Jeff Davis, SGPWA Date: September 29, 2016
Subject: Water Acquisition Options for SGPWA Page 5 of 17

(potentially with others) to be constructed in the next 3 years, but this would not
escalate their regular use of SWP water. The general manager indicated that
Casitas wants their 5 taf Table A amount for future needs. An example of a
potential interim program with Casitas would be for SGPWA to backstop
Casitas’s demands in exchange for a larger quantity of Casitas’s SWP water in
the future (i.e., an unbalanced exchange or banking arrangement in favor of
SGPWA).

3. United is dealing with multiple challenges...currently, Untied can only get its SWP
water via Piru Creek (experiencing ESA issues) and Lake Piru (experiencing
quagga mussel infestation). Lake Piru storage is currently at 12 taf of its 100 taf
capacity; United is considering a new facility to bring SWP water from Lake
Pyramid to Lake Piru (instead of delivery via Piru Creek). This may be an
opportunity for SGPWA to fund a portion of United’s new facilities, in exchange
for a percentage of United's SWP water, or alternately, SGPWA's payback for its
investment could be receiving all of United’s SWP water above its demands.

Central Coast Water Authority (“CCWA") represents two SWP contractors at the State
Water Contractors ("SWC”) board and at most other SWP functions. The two SWP
contractors are San Luis County and Santa Barbara County. In discussions with
CCWA's general manager, the following information was revealed.

1. San Luis Obispo County (“SLO") has 25,000 af of Table A and typically uses
about 5 taffy; SLO is experiencing groundwater overdraft and is currently looking
for additional water. However, they have limited capacity in the California
Aqueduct, only 5 taffy treatment capacity with CCWA, and limited capacity in the
Coastal Branch (4,830 afly for their 25,000 af Table A). At Reach 31A in the
Coastal Branch, there is capacity for 25 tafly for SLO and 45 tafly for Santa
Barbara County (“SB"), but at Reach 33A, capacity decreases to 48.3 tafly total
(10% for SLO and 90% for SB). Historically, SLO has carried over any Table A
above their demand. However, a program is being developed whereby CCWA
agrees to provide additional treatment capacity to SLO in exchange for CCWA
receiving 1 af of SLO’s Table A for every 1 af that CCWA treats above SLO's
treatment capacity; the water derived by CCWA would be distributed to all of
CCWA'’s customers on a pro-rata basis, to the extent that distribution capacity is
available.

2. Santa Barbara County (“SB") is in the process of re-acquiring their 12 taf of
“suspended Table A amount” of their total 45,486 af and has no interest in selling
a portion of their Table A supply. Of the 12 taf of Table A being re-acquired, 9.4
taf will be allocated to Santa Maria, who under a recent judgment must supply
surface water to Nipomo; the balance is to be distributed to others in SLO. Unlike
SLO, SB does have sufficient distribution capacity to deliver their Table A.
However, Carpentaria WD at south end of SB's system, has 1,000 af Table A
they have indicated an interest to sell. CCWA's policy states that a seller must
provide a first-right-of-refusal to others within CCWA; with both SLO and SB both
interested in additional water, it is unlikely the Carpentaria water would leave the

G\San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency-2637\263716002 - Watar Acquisition Options\_DOCS\Reports\FINAL memo 9-2016.doc

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 85 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-147 Page 7 of 18

To: Jeff Davis, SGPWA Data: September 29, 2016
Subject: Water Acquisition Options for SGPWA Page 6 of 17

region. However, as Carpentaria is at the far end of the distribution system, its
fixed costs would need to be recovered, which are higher than other areas within
CCWA (~$1,800/af Table A)...a potential detraction for local purchasers.

A potential partnership between SGPWA and CCWA (SLO and/or SB) could exist
whereby SGPWA could acquire the water in excess of CCWA's needs or ability to
convey to SLO and/or SB. An example exchange program that could benefit both
SGPWA and CCWA would be similar to the 2016 AVEK-SB program discussed
previously (but on a long-term arrangement) and/or a banking program (as SB/SLO
have minimal groundwater storage facilities and in recent years has relied on water
acquisitions to meet demand). Developing an unbalanced exchange or banking
program that could provide SB or SLO water in drier years would allow SGPWA to
retain one or more acre-foot for every 2 acre-feet provided by SB or SLO.

However, CCWA has recently engaged in discussions with AVEK to develop a banking
program to store and recover CCWA's (SLO and SB's) Table A water to increase their
annually reliability. As of today, CCWA is not wedded to AVEK, but AVEK is an
appealing partner due to their large Table A amount and ability to draw from their
groundwater supplies in years of low SWP allocations, resulting in a high level of
AVEK's Table A water being available for CCWA. Given this information, to compete
with AVEK, SGPWA would need to provide a compelling offer that would make a better
business case than what AVEK may offer.

CVP Contract Water

South of Delta CVP supplies are within either the San Luis Unit or Delta-Mendota Canal
("DMC”) contractors (Westside deliveries from the Delta) or the Friant Unit (Eastside
deliveries from Millerton Reservoir).

1. South of Delta Westside CVP ag water deliveries, as noted in the Introduction
section, have been bleak the past several years. A portion of the low allocations
has been due to the drought hydrology, but a large portion is due to regulatory
issues, particularly the Endangered Species Act (‘ESA”), which even in the near
average hydrology experienced this year, has resulted in only a 5% delivery to
CVP ag contractors south of the Delta. Pursuing long-term water purchases from
Westside CVP ag contractors is considered a low priority due to the low yield
from the CVP supply. Urban CVP contractors that obtain their supply via the
Delta have fared better during the 2012-2016 period (75%, 75%, 50%, 25%,
55%, respectively), but they have not indicated any interest to reduce their CVP
contracts.

However, about a decade ago, Mercy Springs Water District (a DMC CVP
contractor) sold 1,000 af of its contract water to a private party for a proposed
development in Santa Nella. At that time, the price was $2,000/af: the
development has not progressed and the water may be available, albeit a
relatively unreliable Westside CVP ag supply (see previous discussion) and more

G:\San Gorgenio Pass Water Agency-2637\253716002 - Water Acquisition Oplions\_DOCS\Reports\FINAL memo 9-2016.doc

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 86 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-147 Page 8 of 18

To: Jeff Davis, SGPWA Data: September 29, 2016
Subject: Water Acquisition Options for SGPWA Page 7 of 17

difficult to transfer due to the 1992 Central Valley Improvement Act (“CVPIA”)
which provides first rights-of-refusal to other CVP contractors.

2. For the Friant Unit on the eastside of the San Joaquin Valley, CVP contractors
are primarily ag districts, with a few small municipal users. Fresno Irrigation
District (*FID") has both Kings River and CVP supplies and has developed
groundwater banking facilities to capture flood water for later use by themselves
and others. FID has historically been active in water transfers and exchanges,
but in conversation with their General Manager, SGMA is causing FID to hold
back from any long-term commitments until any transfers can be evaluated in
context to the pending Groundwater Sustainability Plan for the subbasin. Other
Friant contractors have been even more impacted by reduced water supplies due
to the San Joaquin River Settlement and compounded by the current drought
and pending SGMA actions in a groundwater basin in severe overdraft. CVP
water deliveries to the Friant contractors for 2012-2016 have been, respectively,
50%, 62%, 0%, 0%, 75% for Class 1 (firm) supplies and 0% in each of the last 5
years for Class 2 (non-firm) supplies.

Water Rights Water

In 2000, KCWA and the Nickel Family made an agreement that provided KCWA the
Nickel water rights on the Kern River in exchange for 10 taffy of firm SWP water from
KCWA's Table A amount. Since then, various transitions have occurred resulting in the
following holdings of the 10,000 af/y of “Nickel Water":
1. 1,607 afly purchased by Newhall Land & Farming in 2001 for developmentin
Santa Clarita;
2. 6,693 afly purchased by Tejon Ranchcorp in 2013 for their Grapevine
development; and
3. 1,700 af /y purchased by CV Communities in 2013 for developments in the AVEK
service area.

In a June 2016 agreement between CV Communities and AVEK, 1,187 afly of the
Nickel Water was reserved for CV Communities and the remainder (513 afly) was made
available for AVEK to acquire and use and/or market. AVEK is currently discussing a
multi-year transfer to Montecito (via CCWA to Santa Barbara County’s service area) to
make this water available for $2,000/af. Time is of the essence, but SGPWA could
pursue and potentially compete with Montecito for the 513 affy of firm water (costs to
convey the water by SGPWA should be less than via CCWA).

As background information on market conditions, prior to the above repurchases, in
2007 the Nickel Family transferred 8,393 af to DMB Associates for $525/afly, escalated
each year at CPI or by 3%, whichever is greater; the term was for 35 years, with the
ability to extend another 35 years.

San Joaquin Tributaries Authority (Oakdale ID, South San Joaquin ID, Modesto D,
Turlock ID, City and County of San Francisco) have occasionally attempted to transfer

G:\San Gorgonio Pass Waler Agency-25371253716002 - Water Acquisition Options\_DOCS\Reports\FINAL memo 9-2016.doc

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 87 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-147 Page 9 of 18

To: Jeff Davis, SGPWA Date: September 29, 2016
Subject: Water Acquisition Options for SGPWA Page Bof 17

portions of their surplus water to Westside CVP contractors, generally in the same
counties as the Authority. Public opposition, high conveyance losses and costs regularly
defeated those efforts. Although the area is rich in water supplies, transferring water
from this area has been highly contentious, and with SGMA is anticipated to be more
s0.

Transfers from northern California water rights holders is also an option for SGPWA,
however, the major obstacles are (a) conveyance across the Delta (refer to discussion
later in this memo on Potential Water Transfer Issues), (b) establishing an equitable
basis for sharing the risk in years the water can't be conveyed through the Delta, and (c)
pricing schedule to cover the term of the fransfer. It should be noted that the transfer
from Western Canal WD to Palmdale WD discussed in the 2013 Kennedy/Jenks
memorandum was never agreed to. Water transfers across the Delta from northem
California water districts have been almost exclusively limited to 1-year transfers under
the DWR and USBR Dry Year Transfer Programs.

The Cadiz Valley Water Conservation, Recovery, and Storage Project is under
development and is working to remove remaining political opposition to the project; all
litigation has been recently cleared for the project. The project is designed to capture
and store up to 1 maf of local surface and groundwater flow in the Cadiz Valley, water
that if not stored and/or used would be lost/outflow to a salt water sink. The project
requires construction of a 44-mile pipeline from wells in Cadiz Valley to the Colorado
Aqueduct where the water would be exchanged by MWDSC for SWP water in San Luis
Reservoir (it is our understanding that MWDSC has not yet committed to the exchange).
The project is more fully described on the website at www.cadizinc.com. According to
the Cadiz website, project participants for a portion of the first tranche of 50 tafly yield,
include six southern California water providers (Santa Margarita WD, Three Valleys
MWD, Suburban Water Systems, Golden State WC, Jurupa CSD, and California Water
Service Company. San Luis WD and a mutual water company made up of growers in
the San Joaquin Valley have also executed contracts with Cadiz. Whether all of these
participants will stay “in” is unknown.

Estimated water costs are approximately $1,000/af in San Luis Reservoir (was $960/af
in 2015 dollars) via take or pay contract, but an option to carryover storage in the
groundwater basin for a for one-time payment of $1,500/af (rational is that if the water
is not used, it increases the potential to spill to the salt sink). This is a long-term water
supply that may be of interest to SGPWA, this program could be structured to add yield
for SGPWA on a timetable consistent with projected demand increases in the service
area.

Semitropic WSD is in the development stages of a project that would utilize high flow
Kings River floodwater, store it temporarily in floodwater basins in Kings County, and
convey regulated water into the California Aqueduct downstream to Semitropic WSD for
in-lieu and direct recharge. Water that can be captured in excess of the needs of
Semitropic’s landowners would be marketed to interested third parties. The project is
several years away from completion, and the quantity, frequency, and pricing of any

G:\San Gorgonlo Pass Water Agency-25637\253716002 - Water Acquisition Options\_DOCS\Reperts\FINAL memo 9-2016.dac

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 88 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-147 Page 10 of 18

To: Jeff Davis, SGFWA Date: September 28, 2016
Subject: Water Acquisition Options for SGPWA Page 9 of 17

third party water is yet undetermined; however, this may be another program to add to
SGPWA's water portfolio to increase its future firm water supply.

Renewable Resources Group, an asset management firm focused on water/energy
resources, primarily in California. It has various holdings of water rights and water
projects in California; recent contact with them indicated that they may have water
available on the spot market, but nothing currently available for sale long-term.

Sites Reservoir Project, is a proposed off-stream reservoir in northern California that
in late July 2016, SGPWA submitted a request to participate at a 14,000 af level as a
member of the Reservoir Project Agreement Committee for Phase 1 of the Sites
Reservoir Project being administered by the Sites Project Authority.

Table 2 provides a summary of the water opportunities we've identified that SGPWA
may consider pursuing. We have prioritized these opportunities based primarily on the
criteria of those most likely to be successful in a step-by-step approach of meeting
SGPWA's long-term water supply goals.

Table 2. Potential Long-Term Water Sales

Potential Seller Quantity Pricinig Description / Issues ) Priority
Landowners in TBD Est. $5,000- | Small landowners may beinterested; | €9
TLBWSD (total 6,000/af larger landowners have been
Table A 87,471 &f) contacted and some may be
! interested at higher pricing
Landowners in TBD Est. $5,000- | Small landowners may be interested; | €
EWSID (total Table 6,000/af larger landowners have been
contacted and are not currently
A 3,000 &f) interested
Ventura County TBD TBN Multi-year program where SGPWA 1]
(portion of acquires water that Ventura can't
20 taf) deliver locally
CCWA (SLO and TBD TBN Multi-year program where SGPWA i)
SB Counties) (portion of acquires water that CCWA can't
70.486 taf) deliver locally; also, potential
acquisition of Table A from
Carpentaria WD
Sites Reservoir 14,000 af ~$1,000/af SGPWA has requested to participate | &
Project in Phase 1 of this off-stream surface
water storage project
]

G:\San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency-25371253716002 - Water Acquisition Options\_DOCS\Reports\FINAL memo 9-2016.doc

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 89 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-

147

Page 11 of 18

To: Jeff Davis, SGPWA

Subject: Water Acquisition Options for SGPWA

Date: September 29, 2016

Page 10 of 17

Nickel Water held 513 af ~$2,000/af AVEK beginning negotiations with 1)
by AVEK Montecito (in CCWA)
Landowners in TBD Est. $5,000- | Small landowners may be interested; 3
DRWD (total Table 6,000/af larger landowners have been
A 45,350 af) contacted and are not currently
! interested
Renewable TBD TBD RRG has a portfolio of water (short- &
Resources Group term and long-term); product varies
with time
Cadiz Valley Project | TBD ~$1,000/af Water would be available in San Luis | i
Reservoir
Wathen-Castanos 1,000 af TBN Availability uncertain (CVP contract 3]
Homes amount purchased from Mercy
Springs WD)
Semitropic Kings TBD TBD Early stages of development; e
River Project uncertain if water wili be available for
third parties

For reference only, Table 3 has been prepared to provide the relative cost of SWP
water to SGPWA versus the SWP costs to various upstream SWP contractors

discussed in this memorandum,

Table 3. Fixed and Variable Costs for Selected SWP Contractors

Contractor SWP Fixed Cost per SWP Variable Cost
Acre-Foot of Table A' per Acre-Foot
Delivered?

SGPWA S22
Empire West Side ID 112 23

Tulare Lake Basin WSD 109 23

Dudley Ridge WD 102 23

San Luis Obispo County (CCWA) 246 156

G:\San Gorgarlo Pass Water Agency-2537\253716002 - Water Acquisition Options_DOCS\Reports\FINAL memo 9-2016.doc

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 90 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-147

Page 12 of 18

To: Jeff Davis, SGPWA
Subject: Water Acquisition Options for SGPWA

Date: September 29, 2016
Page 11 of 17

Santa Barbara County (CCWA) 825 156
Castaic Lake WA 198 171
Ventura County 187 186
Antelope Valley — East Kern WA 161 178
Mojave WA 218 214

" Source: DWR Bulletin B132-15, B tables 4, 15, 164, 21, 22, 31
2 Source: DWR Bulletin B132-15, B tables 5B, 16B, 18

Partnering Opportunities

If increasing SGPWA's firm supply cannot be achieved solely through direct purchases
of long-term contract or water rights supplies, other strategies may need to be taken.
Having a portfolio of multi-year or long-term exchange programs that can complement
SGPWA's Table A supply and banking programs are worthy of consideration. Potential

programs are discussed below.

1. Antelope Valley East-Kern Water Agency (‘AVEK")

AVEK is the third largest SWP contractor, with a contract SWP Table A of
144,844 af, but presently has a local annual demand for SWP water of only about
50-60,000 af. In recent years AVEK has developed a groundwater bank to meet
local water quality needs and to firm up its SWP supply; the combination of a
large groundwater basin, relatively large Table A, and recharge and extraction
capability make AVEK a viable storage and exchange partner for SGPWA.

Although it is unlikely that AVEK would permanently transfer any of its Table A or
water right water to SGPWA, if a new source of water could be acquired by
SGPWA that from time to time may not be available during times when SGPWA
could not take direct delivery of the water, AVEK could help regulate and store
those supplies. Because of its flexibility and large Table A, AVEK has the ability
to return water to SGPWA at low allocation levels when other storage programs
may not be able to deliver because of local needs. Additionally, if SGPWA were
to move quickly, the 513 afly of Nickel Water being managed by AVEK (refer to
Water Rights Water section above) could be pursued to bolster its firm water
supply. Otherwise, AVEK'’s long-term interests are similar with SGPWA's, in that
they both want to end up with additional water as a result of water management
programs (albeit AVEK has accommodated annual exchanges that resulted in
less water for AVEK).

G\San Gorgonio Pass Waler Agency-25371253716002 - Water Acquisition Options\_DOCS\Reports\FINAL memo 9-2016.doc

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 91 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-147 Page 13 of 18

To: Jeff Davis, SGPWA ) Date: September 29, 2018
Subject: Water Acquisition Options for SGPWA Page 12 of 17

2. Mojave Water Agency (“MWA”)

MWA has an 85,800 af Table A amount, with current annual needs of about
11,000 afly. In the near- to mid-term, MWA has indicated an interest in
unbalanced exchanges, whereby MWA gives up water in exchange for
recovering a portion of their SWP fixed costs. The recent proposed exchange
between MWA and SCVWD? is an example of the types of programs that work
for MWA.

3. San Bernardino Valley MWD (“SBVMWD")

SBVMWD has 102,600 af of Table A contract amount; in 2016 they were able to
fully use their 60% allocation, which was their highest historical demand.
SBVMWD’s general manager indicated that they will eventually use their full
Table A. As you have stated, SGPWA is currently finalizing a multi-year
agreement with SBVMWD to receive up to 5 tafly as fist priority (above MWDSC)
when SBVMWD has water surplus to their needs. SBYMWD appears that they
will have surplus water in the near- to mid-term when the SWP allocation is
above average (>60%) and even more often whenl/if the California WaterFIx is
implemented.

4. Ventura County

As noted in Table 2 and discussion prior to the table, the three SWP water
purveyors in Ventura County provide an opportunity to develop a multi-year
program where SGPWA acquires water that Ventura can't deliver locally.

5. Castaic Lake WA (“CLWA”)

CLWA has 95,200 af of Table A and in 2007 purchased 11,000 affy rights to
water purchased from the Buena Vista/Rosedale-Rio Bravo Water Banking and
Recovery Program (“BV/RRB Water”). Recent discussions with CLWA indicated
that it was highly unlikely that it would be interested in selling either of these
supplies on a long-term basis, however, by the end of this year it will be
completing a water reliability report intended to better define its water asset mix.
CLWA has sold some of the BV/RRB Water on the spot market, but pending
annexations to CLWA are anticipated which would reduce the availability of that
water over time. Historically, CLWA has sold the BV/RRB Water only in years
when CLWA's board has declared a surplus of water available; sales were made
to the San Luis Water District in 2012 (5.5 taf) and to the Westside 5 (refer to #7
below) in 2012 (16.5 taf) and 2013 (22 taf).

32016 MWA-8GVWD proposal (pending DWR approval) Is a one-year agreement where MWA provides SCVWD up to 8 tafin
20118, with SGCVWD returning a varying quantity of water to MWA by 2026 based on a sliding scale between 16.7% of the waterin a
15% SWP year up to 100% of the water in a year when the SWP allocation is 65% or more; SCYWD would also pay MWA $166/af
for the water delivered SCVWD in 2016 (total $1.328M if the full 8 taf Is delivered, ylelding $332/af for the water retained by
SCVWD).

G:\San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency-2537\253716002 - Water Acquisition Oplions\_DOCS\Reports\FINAL memo 9-2016.doc

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 92 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-147 Page 14 of 18

To: Jeff Davis, SGPWA Date: September 29, 2018
Subject: Waler Acquisition Options for SGPWA Page 13 0f 17

6. Crestline — Lake Arrowhead Water Agency (“CLAWA")

Although CLAWA has only 5,800 af of Table A, it only uses about 1,200 affy of
SWP water and can meet its remaining demands from local supplies. As the
unbalanced 2 for 1 exchange was negotiated in 2016 between SGPWA and
CLAWA (SWPAO #16013), a similar program could be developed on a long-term
basis to address the years when CLAWA has surplus Table A. With SGPWA'’s
water bank in place, higher banking ratios could be considered to provide firm
water to CLAWA.

7. Westside Districts (“Westside 5")

DRWD and four member units within KCWA, with a combined Table A of
575,656 af, have been collaborating since 2008 to acquire supplemental water
supplies to meet their ag demands. Due to their large demand and various
groundwater storage programs available to them (Kern Water Bank, Berrenda
Mesa Water Bank, and others), they are almost always able to take supplemental
water into their service areas. Similar to what was discussed for AVEK, should
SGPWA have water (SWP or other acquired water) in excess of its demand
and/or delivery capacity, the Westside 5 could be a good partner for developing
short- or long-term exchange and/or banking programs to regulate if water
supplies cannot be directly delivered to SGPWA; however, the objectives of the
Westside 5 are similar to SGPWA's, in that they are both attempting to increase
their net water supply.

8. Another opportunity may exist by partnering with one of at least two water
recovery projects being undertaken in the San Joaquin Valley by Element
Renewal. They are working with Tulare Lake Drainage District and Panoche
Water District to treat irrigation drainage water with pre-treatment and reverse
osmosis to a level where the water can be discharged into the California
Aqueduct. These efforts are still in the eatly stages, but tentative projects are that
water can be produced in the $800-1,500/af range. The water would be firm,
assuming the lands that are being drained continue to be irrigated; with SGMA
implementation on the horizon, the long-term reliability of the water supply is
questionable.

9. Lastly, all SWP supplemental water purchase programs should be pursued,
either to add to annual supply, increase groundwater storage, or as opportunity-
water to develop exchange or programs with other water purveyors. Such SWP
programs include the Turnback Pool (to the extent it remains), Yuba Accord
Water, and the Dry Year Water Purchase Program.

Market Pricing

The value of water has been increasing rapidly during the recent drought and increasing
regulatory constraints in California. With the future implementation of the SGMA, the
value of water in California will continue to rise. Table 4 provides an overview of our
assessment of spot market water prices under drier, average, and wetter conditions in

G:\San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency-25371253716002 - Water Acquisition Options\_DOCS\Reports\FINAL memo 9-2016.doc

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 93 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-147 Page 15 of 18

To: Joff Davis, SGPWA
Subject: Water Acquisition Optlons for SGPWA

Date: September 28, 2016
Page 14 of 17

the San Joaquin Valley. It should be noted that these water prices are more typical for
the conditions listed, but specific situations and prior years’ water conditions will result in
pricing of future individual water transfers that could be lower or substantially higher
than the prices shown. This is a dynamic market, subject to price fluctuations based on
(a) conveyance losses, availability, and risks; (b) time of year when deliveries are made;
(c) institutional barriers and risks; (d) environmental and/or third party issues; and (e)
quantity of water delivered.

The “future estimates” below are strictly those of the authors based on past and current
personal experience with negotiating and implementing water transfers. At best, they
are intended to indicate an upward trend versus specific pricing levels. The “future
estimates” are also intended to represent pricing in a 2 to 3-year drought, versus the 4-
year drought we recently (or perhaps still are) experiencing.

Table 4. Overview of Water Pricing for Annual Transfer Water ($/acre-foot

Time Period

Drier
Conditions

Average
Conditions

Wetter
Conditions

Pre-drought (prior to $250-350 $100-200 $25-100

2012)

1% year of drought (2012) $150-250 NA NA
4™ year of drought (2015) $900-1,500 NA NA

Future estimates (pre- $450-900 $300-800 $100-200

SGMA implementation)’

Future estimates (post- $900-1,800 $600-1,200 $200-400

SGMA implementation)?

T Assumes pricing 50% higher than average market in 2013 & 2014 (i.e., 2™ or 3% year of drought)
% Assumes pricing twice that of future market pre-SGMA implementation (again, in 2™ or 3 year of drought)

Potential Water Transfer Issues

Although water transfers have occurred for many years, recent developments have
raised new issues that SGPWA should consider as it evaluates transfer opportunities.
Transfer issues are associated with each of the potential supplies described above.

Conveyance Capacity SWP in Facilities

The SWP Water Supply Contracts allocate the cost of building and maintaining the
Aqueduct and other SWP facilities to the contractors by a somewhat arcane formula.
The formula is meant to equitably allocate the cost of each reach to the contractors that
use that reach to deliver their Table A amount. Therefore, SGPWA pays for a small
portion of the Aqueduct from Banks Pumping Plant to its service area. Since the formula
was envisioned to cover only Table A amounts, any other type of water is evaluated by
DWR to determine if there is a financial or water supply impact on other contractors.

G:\San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency-2537\253716002 - Water Acquisition Options\_DOCS\Reporis\FINAL memo 8-2016.doc

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 94 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-147 Page 16 of 18

Ta; Jeff Davis, SGPWA Dale: September 29, 2016
Subject: Water Acquisition Optians for SGPWA Page 15 0f 17

Reach repayment capacity is often less than the actual constructed physical capacity of
the SWP facilities. Depending on the location within the system, some areas have
ample capacity to move both full SWP Table A amounts plus other supplies. If there is
unused capacity, it is usually not an issue; but if the capacity is being fully used by
participating contractors, DWR goes through a prioritization process. Since DWR is less
and less likely to deliver full Table A amounts to contractors in the future because of
regulatory constraints, it may not be an issue for SGPWA to “borrow” unused capacity,
or pay an additional charge for conveyance, but the reliability of a long-term transfer
using excess capacity should be carefully considered, especially considering SGPWA's
location is essentially at the end of the East Branch. Therefore, SGPWA will need to
evaluate the delivery reliability of the various supplies described herein vs. SWP
capacity limits and non-Table A delivery priorities. In certain high demand year types,
this could require SGPWA to accept deliveries at non-ideal times or sacrifice the
delivery altogether.

Export Capability and San Luis Reservoir Storage

The water year 2016 showed that tightening restrictions on export pumping would make
transfers across the Delta from northern California even more challenging. In past
years, the opportunity to implement transfers from northern California was driven
primarily by hydrology. If the export users had a demand and there was a supply north
of the Delta, whether it was a contractual or water right supply, there was a possibility
for transfer. This year showed that even if there is a water supply available in the north,
getting it across the Delta and exported could be difficult. Shasta, Oroville, and Folsom
were all essentially full, but export capacity was limited. Any available pumping capacity
was committed to Project purposes and unavailable for transfer water. There is now
limited capacity to export the water and a restricted time frame for transfers to take
place (July through September). Other SWP and CVP contractors engaging in transfers
from northern California are attempting to move water within this same three month
transfer window.

A byproduct of this situation is that the State and Federal Projects have not been able to
export as much water, which reduces the amount of water that can be stored in San
Luis Reservoir. This is likely to continue into the future without some isolated
conveyance facility in place, as proposed with the California WaterFix. If water can be
more readily moved south of the Delta, under current conditions there is more available
capacity in San Luis Reservoir storage to regulate deliveries of supplemental water.

Reduced Reliance

The Delta Reform Act of 2009 established the Delta Stewardship Council. The Council's
mission is to achieve the co-equal goals of a more reliable water supply and the
protection, restoration and enhancement of the Delta ecosystem. One of the ways the
Council proposes to accomplish this is “fo reduce reliance on the Delta in meeting
California’s future water supply needs through a statewide strategy of investing in
improved regional supplies, conservation, and water use efficiency”. One interpretation

G:\San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency-25371253716002 - Water Acquisition Options\_DOCS\Reports\FINAL memo 9-2016.doc

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 95 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-147 Page 17 of 18

To: Jeff Davis, SGPWA Date: September 29, 2016
Subject: Water Acquisition Options for SGPWA Page 16 of 17

of this language is that simply less water would be exported from the Delta. This means
that SGPWA could export no more from the Delta then it has in the past. Another
interpretation is that the percentage of water from the Delta in an agency’s total water
supply must (also) be smaller. If this interpretation prevails, there is likely to be a much
more restrictive approach to transfers across the Delta by the State. A water transfer
would be considered a “covered action” requiring approval by the Council to determine if
the action was consistent with the Delta Plan and if it would “reduce” the reliance on the
Delta.

California WaterFix

The present proposal includes two tunnels (pipelines) that would divert water from the
Sacramento River and convey water more directly to the Banks Pumping Plant in the
south Delta. To allocate the costs and benefits of the proposed Delta conveyance, the
DWR envisions a contract amendment to the long-term Water Supply Contract. Recent
informal discussions regarding the amendment and the SWP have explored four areas
that may impact transfers and SGPWA'’s future SWP supplies.

1. Increase the Reliability of the Contractor’'s Existing Table A:

The present reliability or delivery capability of the SWP is about 58% to 60%. If
completed, the California WaterFix should increase the conveyance across the
Delta and increase overall SWP reliability to about 85%; SGPWA's existing
reliability would be improved and should also be less susceptible to future
pumping restrictions in the south Delta.

2. Additional Delta Conveyance:

In 2016 the pumping at Banks Pumping Plant was totally committed to Project
purposes. This left no excess capacity for non-Project transfers across the Delta.
A new isolated facility would provide additional conveyance and therefore more
opportunities for transfer from northern California sources.

3. Options for Increased Participation:

If existing SWP contractors are given the option, some may decide not to
participate in the WaterFix for financial or policy reasons. This may provide an
opportunity for participating contractors to take part at a different level than their
Table A percentage. One benefit of additional capacity could be for Delta
transfers.

4. Water Management Toals:

Many of the present contract provisions make transfers and exchanges between
contractors somewhat cumbersome and expensive. The argument has been
made by some SWP contractors that the costs of the WaterFix can only be
justified if contractors have additional water management tools to allow more
flexibility to use their existing Table A as efficiently as possible. The SWC are
working on these issues now, with Jeff Davis serving as chair for the SWP
contractors’ effort.

G:\San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency-25371253716002 - Water Acquisition Options\_DOCS\Reports\FINAL memo 9-2016.doc

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 96 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-147 Page 18 of 18

To: Jeff Davis, SGPWA Date: September 29, 2016
Subject: Water Acquisition Optlons for SGPWA Page 17 of 17

Local Resistance to Additional Supplies

In some areas, there is a concern that additional water leads directly to increased
growth. Many SWP contractors have faced considerable resistance and sometimes
litigation from local groups opposed to urban growth. SGPWA's service area is in a high
growth region and is likely to face opposition if additional water supplies are being
considered. A common method of challenging additional water supply projects has been
through CEQA. Additional reliability or water obtained through transfers could be
considered as growth inducing and subject to local or regional scrutiny and evaluation.

Administrative Processes Related to Transfers

The 2013 Kennedy/Jenks memo included a section on this subject; if additional
information is needed, Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group has staff familiar and
highly experienced in regularly advising, processing, and working with other SWP
contractors, DWR staff, and others to move water transfer and exchange programs
though the administrative and CEQA processes.

i

G:\San Gorgonlo Pass Water Agency-2537\253716002 - Water Acquisition Options\_DOCS\Reporis\FINAL memo 9-2016.doc

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 97 of 221



Operational Updates

%)
’ Yucaipa Valley Water District

L T\ 4

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 98 of 221



0%
' Yucaipa Valley Water District  Workshop Memorandum 16-148

W”
Date: October 11, 2016

Subject: Status Report on the Operation of the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s
Recycled Water Fill Station at Crystal Creek

On August 5, 2015, the Board of Directors

authorized the District staff to proceed with the RecyCIGd Watel'
Keeps this Property Green

implementation of a recycled water fill station. On
November 2, 2015, the District received a permit
to operate the system from the State Water
Resources Control Board, Division of Drinking
Water.

Over the past several months, the District has
hosted a series of meetings to train residential
customers interested in receiving the recycled
water from this facility. The purpose of this
workshop item is to provide an update on the
operation of the facility.

Email or Phone Password

facebook s

Recycled Water Fill Station

Product/Service
Timeline  About  Photos  Likes  More~
Get the latest info from Recycled Water Fill Station. m ,
. s Sign Up
Log in or sign up for Facebook foday.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 99 of 221



As of September 30, 2016, the Yucaipa Valley Water District provided 730,487 gallons of
recycled water to customers at the recycled water fill station. A total of 103 customers have
been trained to properly transfer and use recycled water at their homes.

Number of Recycled Water Loads

800

700

600

500

400

300

200

” 11
T . )

Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16  Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16  Sep-16

o

Cumulative Quantity of Recycled Water (Gallons)

730,487

v

636,734

/

480,460

/

338,128

/

205,440

-

_ 139,079

_ 109,024
__ 85,302

— 58,367
27,765 7 50,495

Nov-15  Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16  Mar-16  Apr-16  May-16  Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16  Sep-16

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 100 of 221



M)
’ Yucaipa Valley Water District  Workshop Memorandum 16-149

W”
Date: October 11, 2016

Subject: Overview of the Draft Sanitary Sewer Management Plan

A Sewer System Management Plan, also called an SSMP, is a document that describes the
activities the District uses to manage our sewer collection system effectively. Typically, the
effective operation and management of a sewer collection system includes:
¢ Maintaining or improving the condition of the collection system infrastructure in order to
provide reliable service into the future.
e Cost-effectively minimizing infiltration/inflow (I/I) and providing adequate sewer capacity;
and
¢ Minimizing the number and impact of sanitary sewer overflows (SSOs) that occur;
In order to achieve the above goals, sewer collection system agencies develop and implement an
SSMP.

The attached update of the District's SSMP will be finalized and presented at the next board
meeting for adoption.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 101 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-149 Page 2 of 43

%)
' Yucaipa Valley Water District

W

SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN

-
#  Yucaipa Valley Water District

@t

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 102 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-149 Page 3 of 43

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SYSLEII DESCIIPLION ...ttt ettt er e ar e sr e et e e ettt r s e ea s en b enn s 2
DOCUMENE OFGATIIZALION ....etiititititiseei et eeeseeseesee st e st e st e e s e esessebe e st s see st e st e st et e st eseesebe st seasenbensansensan
DICEINIEIONS 1.ttt s bbb e £ 1R s d R s
L 1 DSOS SO TP PPPPPSPPTSTPRPPPPIRY
AUthOTiZed REPIESENTATIVES ....v.vivieuceieeiiieteies ettt sttt ere s sese st es ettt bes s e aemere et s en e 9
Administrative and Maintenance Personnel..................... s 10
S50 Chain of COMMUNICATION .......uiiiiiiiiii i e b e s e e s e b e 13
Le@al AUTROTIEY ...coe ittt cre sttt st es s se e s an e se s snneses s enesnssesesenenseeene B
IIHCIL IASCRATEES .ocveieieeieeet ittt ettt sttt er e b eb e b eb e b essens et et e benbenbe s sseseeseesessssnseneseeseeseases 1
Design and Constrietion ..ot enenee e et ees s cre e s seeeesacaceenees 1
FOG DISCRATEE ...ttt e eh st ee b e s 1e £ b e £ e e 2 b s sasaasm et e nr s 15
ERLOTCEITENL ...ttt ettt e e e e e a8 et ersen s ar e er e en e en e nn e 15
Operations and Maintenance PrOSram ..........ooo ottt sess st ss et saesesere s sese e 16
Sewer Maps. ... 1O
Preventive Mainlenance. ..........ovoviveieeceeeee e ssess e se e ses s as s essessensessssessessessessessessnss 11
Rehabilitation and Replacement Plan ... 19
Equipment and Replacement PArts..........cooo oot sesre s ssere s es X
Design and Performance Provisions ... ..ot aseeeseacre e 21
Design Criteria and Standard Construction DESign .....o.oveeeccecrervesene s sreetesseneseseesesssesesenes 21
Overflow Emergency Response Plan............cooiiiioiiiin e et e e e 22

Notification and Response Procedures et taen p. ¢

Emergency OPerations. ....oeeieeiieuee o eeecee i e eeeee e e e e e eeeaes se s e et tesaneen seeeeeee bt e eeeeeennn e eans P
MINIMIZE IMPACLS cocciiiiii i e b et sb e et sa bbb bt 1e 20
FOG CONrol PrOGIAM.......oiviiiii ittt ea s es s ese et et eesess e se st er s en s eh s b s eb s esees et e s e s e s s e saesaesae s P
FOG DISPOSAL ..ottt e b0 404004t debt bt R

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 103 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-149 Page 4 of 43

Lo@al ATTROTIEY ..ottt sttt st st bbbt s b e eb e b et re bbbt b et b bbb b 0
Requirements for Grease Removal DEVICES.......co.oiiiiiii it 31
AUTROTIEY 10 TNSPECE .. vttt ettt bbb e et ene et e 31
FOG Problem Arcas and Maintenance Schedule...........oooo e 31
System Evaluation and Capacity ASSUrance PLan ...........coueeiiiiine it ere e s 32
Monitoring, Measurement, and Program Modifications ..o 4
Maintain INFOTMALION ......couiii ittt st eb e et eb e b X
Monitor Implementation of SSIMP .......couiiiii e e e 35
Agsessment of Preventive Maintenance Program ... s 33
Program EIBMENTS .......coui ittt ettt e bbb et b et b bbb 3
SISO TIEIS .. ottt et b et e e bbbt s bbb e b £ et se e b bbb e e e e bt e b b e s bbb e 35
SSIMP Pro@ram AILS ........coieiee ettt et re e ettt et s sbe b b re b et seeae b b e b b e et se e se s bnb et ebeebereeseseenen 3
COomMNMUNTCAION PIOGIANN ... veivi ettt ittt sttt ee e eh e b b e ee e st ee e st n s ee e e 37

LIST OF FIGURES

FIgure 1 — OFGANIZATION ......viueieiiei ittt ettt et ee ettt s s b b st e e bbb et ettt 9

L1ST OF TABLES

Table 1 - Responsible POSIHION. .........ciii ittt e e s ee e st ee e e 10

Table 2 - Responsible Staff for SSMP EISMENES. .......coooiviiiiiieiieri et 1

Table 3 — Spill Response Team and Responsibility .......oooiiiiii i 27
YVWD SSMP i

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 104 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-149 Page 5 of 43

INTRODUCTION

This Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP) has been developed by the Yucaipa Valley Water District
(District) to comply with California State Water Resources Control Beoard Order No. 2006-0003-
DWQ -Statewide General Waste Discharge Requirements for Sanitary Sewer Systems (WDRs), and its
recent amendment Order No. WQ 2013-0058-EXEC. On May 2, 20006, the State Water Resources Control
Board adopted the WDRs requiring owners and operators of sanitary sewer systems greater than one
mile in length that collect or convey untreated or partially treated wastewater to a Publicly Owned
Treatment Facility, to apply for coverage and abide by its provisions and prohibitions. Its purpose is to
prevent sanitary sewer overflows (SSOs) and establish uniform procedures for monitoring and reporting.

On June 26, 2006 the District applied for coverage under this order by submitting a Notice of Intent
(NOI) to the State Water Board. On November 16, 2006, the District obtained an account on the State of
California SSO Database (California Integrated Water Quality System [CIWQS]). This provides the
District with a mechanism to report Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSOs) in accordance with the WDRs. The
WDRs also require the development and implementation of a Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP). A
SSMP must include provisions to provide proper and efficient management, operation, and maintenance of
sanitary sewer systems, while taking into consideration risk management and cost benefit analysis.
Additionally, a SSMP must contain a spill response plan that establishes standard procedures for
mmmediate response to an SSO in a manner designed to minimize water quality impacts and potential
nuisance conditions.

System Description

The District owns and operates a sanitary sewer collection system (collection system) consisting of
approximately 225 miles of gravity draining sewer lines ranging in sizes, with the majority being 8 inches
in diameter. The District also has 5 pump stations located throughout the District area providing service to
those areas of geographic need. Treatment is provided at the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling
Facility (WRWRLE), which provides preliminary, primary, secondary, and tertiary treatments, as well as
solids removal handling, for a rated capacity of approximately 8 million gallons per day (mgd).

Document Organization

Te fulfill the requirements of the WDRs, this SSMP contains 11 elements which detail the management,
operation, and maintenance of all parts of the sanitary sewer system.

Goal

Organization

Legal Authority

Operations and Maintenance Program

Design and Performance Provisions

Overflow Emergency Response Plan

Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG) Control Program
System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan

e I

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 105 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-149 Page 6 of 43

Introduction

9. Monitoring, Measurement, and Program Modifications
10. SSMP Program Audits
11. Communication Program

At the beginning of each clemental section the required contents (as defined in the WDRs) are outlined to
inform the reader of the section contents. Following this introduction, each section contains the policies,
practices, descriptions, and references used to address element requirements.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 106 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-149 Page 7 of 43

DEFINITIONS

Best Management Practices (BMP): Refers to the procedures employed in commercial kitchens to
minimize the quantity of grease that is discharged to the sanitary sewer system. Examples include scraping
food scraps into a garbage can and dry wiping dishes and utensils prior to washing.

California Integrated Water Quality System (CIWQS): Refers to the State Water Resources Control
Board online electronic reporting system that 1s used to report SSOs, certify completion of the SSMP, and
provide information on the sanitary sewer system.

California Water Environment Association (CWEA): Means the California Water Environment
Association, which is a recognized voluntary certification program for wastewater personnel in several
disciplinary areas including collection system, environmental compliance inspection, laboratory, and
industrial pretreatment operators.

Capital Assurance Plan (CAP): Means a plan that addresses current and future anticipated sewer capacity
needs based upon general planning documents, growth projections, etc.

Capital Improvement Plan (CIP): Refers to the document that identifies future capital improvements to
the District’s sanitary sewer system.

Category 1 SSO: A Discharge of untreated or partially treated wastewater of any volume resulting from a
sanitary sewer system failure or flow condition that:
a. Reach surface water and/or reach a drainage channel tributary to a surface water; or
b. Reach a MS4 and are not fully captured and returned to the sanitary sewer system or not otherwise
captured and disposed of properly. Any volume of wastewater not recovered from the MS4 1s
considered to have reached surface water unless the storm drain system discharges to a dedicated
storm water or groundwater infiltration basin (e.g., infiltration pit, percolation pond).

Category 2 SSO: A Discharges of untreated or partially treated wastewater greater than or equal to 1,000
gallons resulting from a sanitary sewer system failure or flow condition that does not reach a surface water,
a dramage channel, or the MS4 unless the entire SSO volume discharged to the storm drain system 1s fully
recovered and disposed of properly.

Category 3 880: All other discharges of untreated or partially treated wastewater resulting from a sanitary
sewer system failure or flow condition.

Closed Circuit Television (CCTV): Refers to the process and equipment that is used to internally inspect
the condition of gravity sewers.

Corrective Maintenance (CM): Is a term that refers to reactive maintenance (i.e., respond to equipment
failure) rather than preventative or predictive type maintenance.

District: Refers to the Yucaipa Valley Water District (YVWD).
Enforcement Response Plan (ERP): Refers to the District’s procedures for responding to wastewater

Ordinance and/or Wastewater Permit violations. The responses are designed to induce compliance in a
timely manner and to protect the POTW.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 11, 2016 - Page 107 of 221



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-149 Page 8 of 43

Definitions

Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG): Refers to fats, oils, and grease typically associated with food preparation
and cooking activities that can cause blockages in the sanitary sewer system.

Food Service Establishment (FSE): Refers to commercial or industrial facilitics where food is
handled/prepared/served that discharge to the sanitary sewer system.

Full-time Equivalent (FTE): Refers to the equivalent of 2,080 paid labor hours per year by a regular,
temporary, or contract employee.

General Waste Discharge Requirements (GWDR): Refers to the State Water Resources Control Board
Order No. 2006-0003, Statewide General Waste Discharge Requirements for Sanitary Sewer Systems, dated
May 2, 2006.

Infiltration/Inflow (I/I): Refers to water that enters the sanitary sewer system from storm water and
groundwater that increases the quantity of flow. Infiltration enters through defects in the sanitary sewer
system after flowing through the soil. Inflow enters the sanitary sewer without flowing through the soil.
Typical points of inflow are holes in manhole lids and direct connections to the sanitary sewer (e.g. storm
drains, area drains, and roof leaders).

Lateral: Refers to the piping that conveys sewage from a building to the District’s sewer system. Also
referred to as a private lateral because the ownership and responsibility for maintaining belongs to the
private party (resident or commercial property owner) rather than the District.

Legally Responsible Official (LRO): Refers to the individual who has the authority and accountability for
certifying regulatory reports and other actions that are submitted through the State’s electronic reporting
database, CIWQS.

Monitoring and Reporting Program (MRP): Refers to the section of the WDR that contains the regulatory
requirements for monitoring and reporting activities and wastewater quality to document compliance.

National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES): Refers to the federal permitting system that
contains general and specific monitoring and reporting requ